USGN ada wiowiwosh 911in (UKIBU)
LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

“ juRdanuunoueleni ”

o
u i

._"‘ gl . e

e

SﬁU'\ﬁuUsmU 2556
ANNUALREFPORT

o - " L
el gt AT INT, o O\ W E s R 0 3 :
/ S IS TR R . N~




asury Content

03 $19UNNUS=8IUNSSUNISUSHIS 04 Report of The Executive Chairman

08 Vaqalﬁaoﬁuuﬁ-}n 08 Company Information

09 asuveyanmsiiu 09 Financial Highlights

10 $19a:199AAMUNSSUNISUSEN IA-WUSHS 11 Board of Directors and Management

14 ulgurgiaznwsaunisus:noussig 15 Policy and Overall Business Operations

18 anumu:n1sUs:naussnv 19 Nature of Business

24  asumwsouna:iAsugnolngnaznia:andinnssu 25 Summary of Thai Economy and Real Estate Industry Overview
34 Usienouided 35 Risk Factors

42 Tasvadwnisiiofiu 1a:=n1sdans A3 Shareholding Structure and Management

58 msmnugnanans 59 Corporate Governance

76  ANUSUERBAURDAIALIAzAIORSOU 77 Social and Environmental Responsibilities

82 msnDUF]UmElTuIIa:mSU§ms5ﬂn'lsno1UI?iihl 83 Internal Control and Risk Management

86 $19MSS:nINNAU 87 Related party transactions

88 A1vsurgWaNISANTUIU IA:IIAS1HTIUNNNISINU 89 Explanation on Operating Performance and Analysis of Financial Status

Q2  SWNUANUSUIIABOUVOIANIZNSSUNISAOSIENIUNWNSIIU Q3 Statement of the Board of Director’s Responsibilities to the Financial Statements

Q4  S1UNNATUZNSSUNISASIEOU Q5 The Report of Audit Committees

98 swnuvaldoulydSuounyn Q0O Audit Report of The Independent Certified Public Accountant
100 vumsiiu 101 Financial Statements
112 HhweimaUs:nauIUNISHU 113 Notes to Financial Statements
152 qnﬂaé"]\li_)\lé:uq 153 Other References

i AT

—_—

ik

#H'

Lalin Proparty







s

2

o
— - — i

s1ovuls:9U 2556
USGN ada wSowiwosa I1fa (UKFu)




S1ENIUINUS=81UNSSUNISUSHIS

112556 Lﬂuﬂﬁ'Lﬁiwﬁﬁ@mﬂu@nﬁuﬁqﬁﬁu %@m@ﬁuﬁmmmﬂﬁ@w{g ﬁﬁﬂqu UATLATHENA
lnlrae ity nduidtidmegiansauan uaziimandeuineRunuguess vldnsznusienan
NuwazA1Ru atlafindssmalng ‘ﬁuﬁmmmﬁﬁ@ﬁ@uﬁwLLG‘E@Lmé\ﬂ LArHRUANI8NEIND A9
Tainsznuguusamiouusdssmalulede

genaedmsuninginsuenesiaAeud1en %ﬂﬁﬂgmﬁﬂum@’mLL@:LLngq genamaulndilen
aragaenaiui i ligluineiag sinldas Q4 Gudiloywniuudtae dezneufufianio
nsiilesquane i iAalyAnustaasialng s z%wi"umﬁ@ﬁ@ﬂmﬁml,mmu fedanluo)idu
ﬁ@ﬂ@mﬂu real demand NIENLAMNMAENIOIAINA91TIS usifaandn 4 iU una.aaa Wusalsd
mﬂm@ﬂmﬂmmqmu 70% - 80% Usmlddsunagnsnaasyiulauazmenszangannandedly
fdananasnedamdaiiisty vl laFunansznUliguues nadszneunismaent 2556 ferenasaeg

lunauaia nspauansuuwazAldanesiieegluwnuuwaznsguaniidusteruda lunoet

a o 4 a o dé/
A M lkalsenaunI1U99LTEN AT

TuguzuNUNL 888 Wienmesh fesreveuAmAN AR laluniefia
AUANDTINY LAZIDUAMANNTIUNIRY AU Suppliers NANLIAULINUIBILEENAEA vinWNa
IUBBILTEN 1AseyiRLTnatineaNaNe

lradus gAsna

92 E1UNIINNITLTING

Annual Report 2013
Lalin Property Public Company Limited

3



4

Report of Executive Chairman

In 2013, external economic conditions improved. The economies in the United States,
Japan and Europe gradually improved. The positive Asia economic group and assets were
transferred aggressively with impact on the capital market and currency rates. However,
Thailand’s basic economy is quite strong and has enough reserve funds so the country was

not as greatly affected as some other Asian countries.

The real estate business expanded quite well in both low-rise and high-rise categories.
The condominium business may seem as though it expanded passed its limits in some locations
which caused Q4 to have problems and resulted in declining demand. This, accompanied by
the political turmoil, caused a general deceleration or down-turn. The low-rise business, which
is mostly a real demand business, was somewhat affected by the aforementioned incidents but
less. Lalin Property PCL. emphasized 70 — 80 % income from the low-rise business category.
Our company changed its strategy for growth and increased the risks in provincial markets,
thereby minimizing the impact. Our business profits in 2013 are still considered good. Cost
control and expenses were in our work plan and our debt-equity ratio is considered good,

thereby improving our business profits.

On behalf of the Lalin Property PCL team, | would like to thank every staff member for
commitment to the work. | would also like to thank the financial institutions, investors and sup-
pliers for supporting our company and ensuring that our company’s accomplishments continue

to grow.

C. Ml —

(Chaiyan Chakarakul)

Executive Chairman
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Financial Highlights

T18MmM9
AUNTWE (@1UUN) / Assets (Million Baht)
AUANPUUAD (Inventories) 4,437.33 4,770.84 5,814.36
Auningdsau (Total Assets) 5,127.14 5,877.82 6,909.70

NUAULATAINIRINTAUY (RIULIN)
Liabilities & Shareholders’ Equity (Million Baht)

uﬁauﬁﬁguﬁﬂu (Current Liabilities) 545.93 409.06 583.57
uﬁﬁﬂaimguﬁw (Non-Current Liabilities) 646.42 1,396.16 2,032.21
vilAusan (Total Liabilities) 1,192.35 1,805.23 2,615.78
nuﬁ@@m,l,@xﬁmﬁwmn,z’h (Paid up Share Capital) 825.00 825.00 825.00
daure3giatiu (Shareholders’ Equity) 3,925.35 4,062.62 4,293.92
NAMSALUUINU (ﬁ"lulrm) Operation’s Result
selfannisene (Sales) 1,860.71 1,720.39 2,322.81
salfisan (Total Revenue) 1,867.14 1,730.29 2,333.45
Slsdudins (Gross Profi) 743.40 682.39 915.39
fnlsgne (Net Profit) 293.47 269.71 419.33

Wiguiluamsisaiu () Per Share Figure (Baht)

a

fnls (1anw) 4ns (Net Profit (Loss)) 0.36 0.33 0.51

yaAANLTEYT (Book Value) 4.76 4.92 5.20

yarfinald (Par Value) 1.00 1.00 1.00
ANTIFIURNWARBINIIMSLU (Liquidity Ratio)

fMINAIUANINAAD (Current Ratio) 8.26 12.01 10.18

BRINAIUANINARBINHWALIWEY (Quick Ratio) 0.19 0.55 0.53
ANSIFIULAAIAMNAIN5D LwMSMLs (Profitability Ratio)

'évmﬁﬁﬂi%uﬁu (Gross Profit Margin) 39.93% 39.66% 39.41%

fm9711113991nN19ALHLeU (Operation Profit Margin) 24.14% 22.44% 24.15%

§n9rinlagnd (Net Profit Margin) 15.72% 15.59% 17.97%

ﬁ“mmmm@mmuéﬁﬂﬁu (Return on Equities) 7.60% 6.74% 10.02%
angdrudssdansmwlumaniiueu (Efficiency Ratio)

SAIHARALILTANNINER U A (Return on Asset) 6.02% 4.90% 6.56%
ansdrunlaunantamsidu (Financial Policy Ratio)

ﬁmmﬁaummumméﬁ@ﬁgu (Debt to Equity Ratio) 0.30 0.44 0.61

FsgaupNanEnTdsTAenLE (Interest Coverage Ratio) 18.19 11.28 14.81

MUIURUNEFENE13TILAY (A1) Number of Outstanding Shares (Million
Shares) 825.00 825.00 825.00
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Board of Directors and Management

Name/Position Age Education
(¥Yr)

1. Taveesak Watcharakawong 66 - Over 30 years experience 28.30 2003 - Present Chairman Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Chairman in Real Estate Business 1988 - 2002 Chairman Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
(Authorized Director)

2.Chaiyan Chakarakul 63 -Bachelor Degree in Commerce  34.36 2003 — Present Managing Director  Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Director and (honour) Thammasart University 1998 - 2002 Managing Director  Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Executive Chairman -M.S.Thammasart University
(Authorized Director) Real Estate Management,

Chulalongkorn University # 8

- Senior Executive Program 4 Sasin
GIBA Chulalongkomn University and
The Wharton School University of
Pennsyvania and “Kellogg” -
Graduate School of Management
North-Western University

- The National Defence for joint state-
private sectors course, class 14

-DCP Class 65 - 0D

- Capital Market Academy (CMA),
Class 7

3. Suvarn Tansathit 68 -(M.SC) in Commerce - 2006 — Present Director / Senior Bangkok Bank Public Co., Ltd. ~ Financial Institution
Independent Director University of SANTO TOMAS Executive Vice
and Chairman of The -BBA (management) President
Audit Committee University of East Philippine 1998 - 2006 SEVP - Special Bangkok Bank Public Co., Ltd.  Financial Institution

-DCP Class 63 - 10D Asset Management

4.Niputh Jitprasonk 69 -Certificate in Real Estate - 2013 - Present Consultant of Real Thammasat University Educational Institution
Independent Director and Member Manage-ment University at Hawaii Estate Management
of Audit Committee -M.B.A. International Trade and Program

Finance, Gothenburg School of 1995-2012 Director of Real Thammasat University Educational Institution
Economics and Business Admin- Estate Management
istration, Sweden Program
-Bachelor of Arts, (Honour First
Class) Faculty of Commerce and
Accountancy, Thammasat University
- The National Defence for joint state-
private sectors course, class 7
- Capital Market Academy (CMA),
Class 2
-DCP Class 85 - 10D

5. Satit Chanjavanakul 65 -M.B.A. Thammasat University - 2004 2008 Secretary General, Board of Investment (BOI) Government
Independent Director and Member - M.Sc. (Textile Technology), Board of Investment
of Audit Committee University of Leeds, UK. (BOI),

- Bachelor of Engineering 2003 - 2004 Deputy Secretary Board of Investment (BOI) Government
(Industrial Engineering), General, Board of
Chulalongkorn University Investment (BOI)

- The National Defence for joint 2001 - 2003 Deputy Permanent Ministry of Industry Government
state-private sectors course, Secretary, Ministry
class 14 of Industry

- DCP Class 83 - 10D

- Capital Market Academy (CMA),
Class 5

6.Nat Sangarsongkogk 53 -M.B.A. Rangsit University 0.04 2012 - Present Deputy Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Director and Deputy Managing Real Estate Management, Managing Director
Director Chulalongkorn University # 11 2003 -2012 Assistant Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
(Authorized Director) -DCP Class 67 - 10D Managing Director

2000 - 2002 Senior Project Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Management Man-
ager
1989 - 2000 Project Management  Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Manager

Annual Report 2013

Lalin Property Public Company Limited



12

Ta-ANA / AU

AMYAIIMSANEN

LMY

ALY

P
o

dssiangsm

6. Wizl ahawuAs 54 - MBA WANENAETER 004  2555-1laqiiu 399N33HMN3 UNA.ARA Wienwesi Anedmizaming
N99HNT3 UAY - fiiFnsedananning ginadnenl gannslvey .
saanssumsgdnnnslviny Aanendt Ui 1 2546 - 25655 HENgILNg ua.afa Wianmedh wmuadmaaming
(ﬂiiumiéﬁémwmum) - Director Certification Program (DCP) Qﬁmﬂﬂi
W67 - 10D 2543-2545  gApnsenyla van.afa uaud ueudidnd  imunedwBiming
ehetiimsany
2532-2543  Tasanns van.afa uaud ueudidnd  imunedwBiming
ganns
ehenidmaany
Thsanns
7. IEg5TL TASR 36 - Py MB.A. American 030  2555-faqiiy  ffaenssumeians  Uxa.aRa Wianinesh Amunadmsaming
NITUNT UAT University U.S.A. .
fenssunaginns - snyyrtn M.S. (Economic) 2553-2555  H@nuaennsSBU2  uwa.ada wewmadh ARedmizaming
(nssunslienunanany) University of lllinois — Urbana uazgdnnis
Champaign U.S.A. HNensnaIa B
- PSryynm3 AdanssnAnans 2552-2553  foudanis una.afa niaminesh Amnedmizaming
qianInNIINeN§e thennman
- Director Cerification Program (DCP) 2551-2652  Assistance uua.uained nii anniunaiiy
U 161-10D Vice President
2549 — 2551 Analyst - LR NURY (MWNT) AnnLunIRu
Investment Banking
2548 - 2549 Analyst — LRI (WD) AnnIuNIIRu
Investment Banking
8. wEns SURWAUAS 41 - Boyayln Masterof Accountancy - 2555 - flaqiiy  fenssumsiians  uwa.afa wewwedh AaedmBunIne
fnenssunagannis ANIAINTINIANENAE
- Bryynas matinyd awanende 2554-2555  Chief Financial Of- Uan.niu31nef wiua ARAMNITH
PIHAMIN ficer
2548 - 2554 van.idu § enf fuief AAFWNIIN
Finance&Accounting
Manager
9. WEMUSIA FNAUATIER 60 - Wyaln nadaniemiaiguar - 2556 - faqiiy  féensenls  una.afa niewmedh vinunedmzuning
fermemisdieela MANTY (MPPM) - NIDA thetfmnsaunasia .
thetinsanunieain - Amanssupnanitiudinananlus 2546-2555  fAansenqla U840 Wiawine s vinnadmzuning
Philippines thenBvnanuneaing
- Bygas WEmsaunea¥i) 2531 - 2545 Hians uan.aaa uaus weudidinid  wWannadwrsuning
wranendeglaieassiigg Qetnsnuneai
- Mini MBA 9asnsniivinende
- Mini MBA NsanenaeassuAans
10.0TEgN S953A 50 - 1Bryeynsia natioyd - 2546 -faqiiy  faemsdend una.ada newmedd WaadmFuning
fanmsehenind NANENRENJUNIH
- Mini MBA ¥naansniuvnane g 2531 - 2545 Hneddnnis Uan.ada waud ueudidind  inedarsiming
thentryd
11.unend Fugaas 36 - Wrysynln Lvnegsnia (MBA) - 2551 -flaqiiy  fansdiensiu  una.ade nienmedh wnedmizuning
gannsthensRu AN .
WAT 1AIYNTLEEM - Bryysi3 Lswsgsnia (BBA) 2549 - 2550 Hedans U688 Wianinesh wnedmizuning
WANENGEssINAART ehenafiu
- Certificate in Real Estate Man- 2546-2548  Trader v udunsilng Fanriaai
agement University of California, 2542 - 2544 Internal Auditor FUIANTNTINN A (W) AnNtuNIRY

Riverside Extension U.S.A.
Company Secretary Program (CSP)
$U50 - 10D
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Name/Position

A(e?) Education Holder
(%) Period 0! Company Business

7. Churat Chakarakul 35 -MB.A. American University US.AA.  0.30 2012 - Present Assistant Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Director and Assistant -M.S. (Economic) University of Managing Director
Managing Director Ilinois — Urbana Champaign U.S.A. 2010-2012 SBU2 Director & Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
(Authorized Director) -Bachelor of Engineering, Chul- Corporate Marketing
alongkorn University Department Manager
-DCP Class 161 -10D 2009 -2010 Assistant Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Marketing Manager
2008 - 2009 Assistance The Brooker Group Financial Institution
Vice President Public Co.,Ltd.
2006 - 2008 Analyst - Capital Nomura Securities Public - Financial Institution
Investment Banking Co.,Ltd.
2005 - 2006 Analyst — Phatra Securities Public Co.,Ltd.  Financial Institution

Investment Banking

8. Korn Thanapipatsiri 40  -Master of Accountancy - 2012 - Present Assistant Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Assistant Managing Director Chulalongkorn University Managing Director
-Bachelor of Accountancy - 2011-2012 Chief Financial Green River Panels Co.,Ltd. Industry
Ramkhamhaeng University Officer
2005 -2011 Finance&Accounting  N.C.R. Rubber Industry Co.,Ltd.  Industry
Manager
9. Narong Sangarsongkogk 59  -Master of Public and Private Man- 2000 — Present Senior Project Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Senior Project Construction Director agement (MPPM), NIDA Construction Man-
- Bachelor of Engineering, Phillipines ager
-Bachelor of Engineering, 1988 - 2000 Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
(Construction Management) Project
- Sukothai Dhammatirat University Construction Man-
- MiniMBA Chulalongkom University ager
-Mini MBA Thammasat University
10. Kanitha Thamviseth 49  -Bachelor of Accountancy — 2003 - Present Accounting Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Accounting Manager Bangkok University Manager
- Mini MBA - Chulalongkom University 1988 - 2002 Assistant Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Accounting Manager
11. Seri Sintuas 35 -M.B.A. - Chulalongkorn University 2008 - Present Finance Manager  Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Finance Manager and Company’s -B.B.A. - Thammasat University
Executive Secretary Certificate in Real Estate 2006 - 2007 Assistant Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Management University of Califomia, Finance Manger
Riverside Extension U.S.A. 2003 - 2005 Trader The Siam Cement Public Co.,Ltd.  Construction Material
-CSP Class 50 - 10D Bangkok Bank Public Co., Ltd.
1999 - 2001 Internal Auditor Financial Institution
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Significant Changes and Development

Lalin Property Public Co., Ltd. was founded on 8 September 1988 with initial registered capital of 20 million baht
and Mr. Thaweesak Wacharakhawong and Mr. Chaiyan Chakornkul as the first shareholders. The company conducts
housing business under the slogan “Home Built with the Best Intention”. The first housing project under the project
name “Lully Ville” was set up in two areas, namely, Srinagarind and Dhupateme Roads, with a total of 800 housing units
on 88 rai of land and a project value of 1,100 million baht. The project has already been closed. Throughout the past,
the company has continually launched housing projects, even during the economic crisis of 1997 when the company
was one of only a few companies in Thailand that did not require debt restructuring and created no NPL for any financial

institutions.

During the time of crisis for the real estate industry, the company started marketing for new housing projects, e.g.
the project Friend-get-Friend and the implementation of escrow accounts to build customer confidence. As a result,
the company was one of only a few companies in the real estate industry with no need to re-negotiate its debt structure
with any financial institution. Moreover, the company was the leader in implementing the strategy to purchase projects
and land as collateral for the NPAs of financial institutions and asset auction from the Financial Sector Restructuring
Authority (FSRA) for further development. As a result, the company was able to develop projects continually and with

annually increasing sales figure and competitive operating costs under today’s conditions of fierce competition.

Annual Report 2013
Lalin Property Public Company Limited
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The company has increased its registered capital consistently to support project development as follows:

e 1997 Increased registered capital to 250 million baht.

1998 Increased registered capital to 300 million and 400 million baht, respectively.

1999 Increased registered capital to 555 million baht.

2002 Converted to public company on 3 September 2002 and registered in the SET with registered

capital increased to 825 million baht.

Throughout the past ten years, the company has expanded projects consistently to support business growth
and replace previously completed projects. The company has conducted regular research on market demand and
developed products to meet consumer demands and expand its customer base. In 2010, the company launched a
new brand, “Lanceo”, with single home and modern duplex home projects, designed by a designing company with
performance accepted worldwide with an Organic Contemporary theme blending contemporary work with nature. The
following year, the company launched another new brand, “Lio”, a 2-storey and 3-storey town home project in modern
ecology style. The two brands are for customer base expansion to the market of new generation consumers. As of
the end of 2013, the company had launched a total of 19 “Lanceo” and “Lio” projects valued at approximately 15,000

million baht.

Furthermore, the company launched an 8-storey condominium project to support specific consumer groups,
especially those who are new graduates who have just started working and people who want to live in condominiums
in the city. During 2011-2013, the company launched four 8-storey condominium projects under the brand “Levo” and
“Lib” valued at approximately 1,200 million baht. The first project began to generate income in late 2012. In addition to
expanding customer base to a wider age range, the company also expanded its customer base in terms of geographic
area. The company has expanded its business to provincial markets since 2012, to provinces with capacity such as
Chonburi, Rayong, Chachoensao, and Nakhonratchasima. At the end of 2013, a total of five new projects were launched

in provincial markets.

Business Goals

The company is determined to become the nation’s leading business in the housing business with policy focused
on stable, continual growth and business expansion by taking factors into consideration with prudence and caution and
seeking new business opportunities. The company is considering concepts for developing projects capable of meeting
customer demands from project location, housing development with consideration of functionality, modern design, cost
effectiveness as well as the building of quality society. The company’s motto is “Homes Built with the Best Intention”.
Under normal conditions, the company launches new housing projects every year in areas with capacity, according to
the Five-Corner Home policy, with fair selling prices and quality society, with emphasis on lower middle to high class
customers, and focus on customers with real demand. During the past four years (2010 — 2013), the company launched
5-6 new projects per year. And in 2014, the company plans to launch about 6-8 new projects with an approximate total
value of 4,000 million baht.

Annual Report 2013
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Nature of Business

Lalin Property Public Company Limited is a developer of houses with land for commercial sales. The Company
currently has registered capital of 925 million Baht (of which 825 million Baht is fully paid-up). Mr. Taveesak Watcharak-
kawong serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul as Executive Chairman. The Com-
pany is the sole developer and owner of various residential housing projects, with a primary focus on detached house,
semi detached houses (new concept homes), and townhouses in the Bangkok and greater Bangkok area. The projects
comprise “Lalin GreenVille”; “Baan Lalin in the Park”; “Baan Burirom”; “Lully Ville”, “The Balcony Home”, and the two
new brands named “Lanceo” and “Lio”. The company launched a new condominium project branded “LEVO” in 2011,
and “The LIB” in 2012 to support customer’s needs. The company launched projects which cover 5 major regions of
Bangkok and vicinities, that is, the central city zone, the western zone, eastern zone, northern zone and southern zone.
This has provided the basis for the Company’s business direction for the past 26 years. Moreover, since 2012 Com-
pany has started to expand business to other potential provinces. At the end of 2013, Company had already launched
5 projects in up-country market.

With its extensive experience spanning over 20 years, the Company is the leader of the mid market housing
segment, targeting customers looking to purchase homes in the 1.5 - 6 million Baht range. This segment represents a
market supported by real demand, with consumers possessing a household income of between 25,000 -120,000 Baht
per month. This market also includes a significant number of the population. The Company is committed to ongoing
product development, to meet the needs of consumers, whether in terms of project locations; developing house designs
with a regard for functionality; contemporary design; and value for money. This reflects the philosophy carried in the
hearts of all Lalin Property employees: “Houses built on good intentions”.

The Company seeks to develop projects that meet demand for housing in areas that consumers want, striving to
make the Lalin Property name widely associated with value and quality. The homes in each project offer a selection of
designs to choose from. Customers can purchase either one of 3 options in the projects: pre-built homes, semi-pre-built
homes and built-to-order homes. This approach and business strategy has allowed the Company to fulfill the needs of
its customers, inspiring them with confidence in its operations. Company had registered trademark for project’'s names,
and each of project names have their own customer target. At present, Company has project names under management
as follow.

Lalin Greenville

Qaa ndudaa Qaa nSyudaa
douyd & Jumndute grssmgi

Project Type : Detached House
Target Customer  : High Income Segment. Selling price is above 5 Million Baht.
Baan Lalin

f = - U Aza
YUhnidaa mu QQQ The young Executive

B fam-=

COUE BT - Fssn0

Project Type : Detached House

Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 3.0 — 5.0 Million Baht.
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Baan Burirom

e — - - — -
UhuySalg Ouussue s,

Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept)

Target Customer  : Medium Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.2 — 4.0 Million Baht.
Lully Ville

Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept), and Townhouse

Target Customer  : Medium-Low Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 1.0 — 2.5 Million Baht.

The Balcony Home
(c%e @afcoﬂy?{‘lme
S — By Lalin

Project Type : In town Townhouse

Target Customer : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.5 — 3.5 Million Baht.

LANCEO
orceo
Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept) under concept Modern Organic
Contemporary

Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.5 — 4.0 Million Baht.

LIO

—_—— =

(| ID N
,,—:‘-,,,-,-.._____/ By Lalin Proparty

Project Type : Townhouse for young generation under concept “Modern Ecology”
Target Customer : Medium-Low Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 1.5 — 2.5 Million Baht.
LEVO Condo

Project Type : 8-storey Condominium. Under concept “Revolution of Life”
Target Customer : Young generation who want to live in town, and close to electric train station. Selling price’s

approximately 1.8 — 3.0 Million Baht.
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LIECo

. BE—
Project Type . 8-storey Condominium. Under concept “Liberty of Living”
Target Customer . Young generation who want to live in town, and close to electric train station. Selling price’s

approximately 1.4 — 2.5 Million Baht.

As a continuation from business expansion to provincial areas, namely, the projects Lanceo and CRIB Siracha-
Bowin and Lanceo CRIB Siracha — Naprao that were launched in 2012, the company launched 3 additional projects
in provincial areas in 2013, namely, Lanceo CRIB Chachoensao — Sothorn (Single and duplex homes), Lanceo CRIB
Nakhonratchasima — Muenwai (Single and duplex homes) and LIO Nov Rayong —Pluak Daeng (Single duplex homes
and townhouses). The three projects’ total values were approximately 3,000 million baht. In addition, the company also
launched one additional single home and duplex project under the name Lanceo CRIB Pinklao — Traffic Circle in the

west of Bangkok and Bangkok suburbs with an approximate project value of 1,400 million baht.

On 20 June 2013, Tris Rating moved the company’s rating from BBB to BBB+. This was the first rating adjustment in the
real estate development industry in over two years, and the company was the only company to receive a credit rating
improvement in the industry in 2013, thereby reflecting the company’s business status as growing stronger from the
achievement on previous business expansion as well as business plans to continually expand in the future. The up-
grade also reflects the company’s ability to manage costs due to the fact that the company’s profitability has been better

than the industry average for a prolonged period. It also reflects the company’s strong financial status and discipline.

The company’s main revenue comes from the real estate business, which can be divided into four types of housing
products, namely, single homes, duplexes, townhouses and condominiums. The revenue from each type of product

can be summarized as follows:

Product Types

Million B Million B Million B

Revenue from Sales

Detached House 1,019.36 54.78% 907.47 52.75% 1,190.34 51.25%
Semi-Detached House 410.40 22.06% 391.88 22.78% 483.79 20.83%
Townhouse 430.95 23.16% 319.92 18.60% 427.04 18.38%
Condominium 0.00 0.00% 101.13 5.88% 221.63 9.54%
Total 1,860.71 1,720.40 2,322.20
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Summary of Thai Economy and Real Estate Industry

Overview

Overall, Thailand’s 2013 economy grew at 2.9%, a rate that was rather slow compared to 6.5% in 2012. In early
2013, people were forecasting that the Thai economy would have a growth rate of 4.5 -5.5% in 2013, a good upward
trend driven mainly by domestic demand and private sector investments. In addition, the export sector also expected to
be recovering in line with the economic recovery of the USA and developed countries. Nevertheless, Thailand’s 2013
economy was unable to grow as forecast because the economy was affected by both anticipated and unanticipated
domestic and foreign factors,. Examples of external factors were China’s economic downturn due to Chinese government
policy changes focused on sustainable growth, the USA’s debt ceiling issues and the conflict between the two political
parties leading to a government shutdown with signs of quantitative easing by US banks during the middle of the year,
causing the money to flow back with effects on monetary value and domestic money markets. Examples of internal
factors with impact on economic growth in 2013 were the expiration of the government’s First Car policy, the widespread
political demonstrations after the government’s effort to pass the Amnesty Bill with escalating violence and impact on
investor and consumer confidence with far-reaching effect on the tourism sector. The impacts began in the last quarter

of 2013 and projection show a trend for these economic impacts to continue on into 2014.

Growth rate of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in the past 6 years (Percent)

_____

2008 -4.2

2009 =71 -4.9 -2.7 5.8 -2.3
2010 12.0 9.2 6.6 3.8 7.8
2011 3.2 2.7 3.7 -9.0 0.1
2012 0.4 4.4 3.1 19.1 6.5
2013 5.4 2.9 2.7 0.6 2.9

A number of influential factors in 2013 caused 2013 Thai economy to experience a slow-down. The key factors
involved in this economic down-turn came from a significant drop in domestic demand, especially in the private sec-
tor. In 2013, household spending had a growth rate of only 0.2% from 6.7% in the previous year. This was a result of
significant decreases in automobile sales after the first car project expired. In addition, household debts increased as
the household sector became more cautious about spending. Financial institutions increased their stringency in grant-
ing loans to the home-buying sector, so consumer spending was inhibited. Furthermore, the political conflicts taking
place at the end of the year dampened consumer confidence. Consequently, consumers became more cautious about

spending money. This low growth trend in household spending will continue for a while.
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In 2013, private investments plummeted, especially during the second half of the year, even though the growth
had been on the negative side all along. This was partly due to the high base in 2012 brought on by the import of
machinery and equipment to restore damages caused by the great flood that had taken place during the previous
year. In addition, business entrepreneurs postponed their investments in order to assess economic circumstances, the
recovery of domestic and foreign demands, and the political conflicts. Thus, private investment trends will continue to

be postponed with a recovery trend in the latter half of the year.

Overall 2013 economic stability was still good for both domestic and foreign stability. For domestic stability,
unemployment was very low with 38.9 million people who were employed in 2013 which is similar to the same figures
for 2012, and the unemployment rate was only 0.7%, which can be considered very low. For 2013 inflation, general
inflation rate was 2.18%, a decrease from 3.02% of last year's due to the decline in energy costs in concurrence with
declining global oil prices. The 2013 core inflation also declined from 2.09% in the previous year to 1.00%, due partly
to the decrease in demand and high competition, causing product and service prices increases to be rather limited.
Financial stability also remained good, even though public debt was increased. In 2013, public debt was 5.45 trillion
baht or 45.71% of the GDP, an increase from 4.96 trillion, or 43.99% of the GDP for the previous year.

Foreign stability was also good with a trade surplus 6,353.91 million USD while service accounts, income and
transfer funds showed a deficit of 9,144.51 million USD, an increase from a deficit of 7,484.66 million USD for the pre-
vious year due to the remitting of profits and dividends by foreign business operators, particularly in the automotive
industry which had good performance as a result of the First Car project that gave current accounts a deficit of 2,789.6
million USD. Capital account movement decreased significantly from 14,142 million USD in 2012 to only 1,236 million
USD in 2013. This was corresponding to the decrease in portfolio investments from a significant amount of net inflow
2012 to net outflow in 2013. Investment inflow 2013 came from short- and long-term loans with direct foreign invest-
ments causing Thailand to have a deficit payment balance of 5,049.1 million USD which was the first deficit in over ten
years. However, foreign exchange reserve was still at a secure level of 1.67 trillion USD at the end of 2013. In terms of
liquidity, the foreign cash reserve to the foreign debt ratio was 2.8 times, two times higher than the standard. Furthermore,

the foreign cash reserve to the import value ratio was 9.2 months, which is higher than the standard of 3-4 months.

Summary table of Economic overview in 2013

2012 2013

2012 | 2013

Thailand GDP Growth 6.5 2.9 0.4 4.4 3.1 191 5.4 2.9 2.7 0.6

Demand (Expenditure)

Private Consumption 6.7 0.2 2.9 5.3 6.0 124 4.4 25 -12 -45
Government Consumption 7.5 49 -0.2 74 100 125 2.9 7.6 7.3 0.9
Investment in fixed assets 132 1.9 52 102 155 229 5.8 47 6.3 -11.3
Change in inventories 487.5 107.7 480.2 203.6 -279.1 89.6 19.1 13.7 602 825
Export of goods and services 3.1 42 3.2 1.1 2.8 196 8.3 2.9 3.8 2.0
- Goods (f.0.b.) -0.4 02 -50 -16 -62 135 3.7 15 -14 0.2
- Services 19.1 197 42 154 143 457 257 224 252 8.0
Import of goods and services 6.2 2.3 4.3 86 -1.8 150 8.1 4.5 0.8 -35
- Goods (c.i.f.) 6.5 1.8 4.3 8.8 -23 169 9.5 44 -05 -53
- Services 4.6 5.2 4.3 7.1 1.3 5.8 1.2 5.3 8.1 6.3
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2012 | 2013

Supply (Production)

Agriculture 3.8 1.4 3.4 1.8 8.3 3.1 0.8 25 -0.3 2.3
Non-Agriculture 6.7 3.0 0.1 4.7 27 212 5.8 3.0 3.0 0.4
- Construction 7.8 1.2 0.8 6.9 9.8 141 105 50 -22 -1.7
- Property for rent 3.9 46 1.0 3.6 5.1 8.0 5.3 4.4 4.4 4.4

Internal Stability

Headline Inflation 3.02 218 339 252 294 323 310 231 167 1.68
Core Inflation 209 100 274 200 219 182 146 1.00 0.74 0.82
Unemployment Rate (%) 066 072 072 086 058 047 072 074 077 065
Public Debt (Billion Baht) 4,961 5,450 4,473 4,792 4,937 4,961 5,121 5225 5,431 5,450
Per GDP (%) 43.99 4571 4143 43.34 43.91 43.99 4416 4427 4549 4571

External Stability (Billion U.S.Dollar)

Trade Balance 6.02 6.35 072 071 451 008 -157 -0.96 5.03 3.85
Current Account Balance -1.47 279 130 -414 -056 1.93 0.07 -7.17 -0.89 5.20
Capital Account 023 027 0.09 000 0.13 0.01 001 012 0.14 0.00
Financial Account 1414 114 346 2.01 823 045 379 520 0.17 -8.01
Balance of Payment 526 -505 269 -326 513 071 260 -244 -195 -3.26
Foreign Exchange Reserves 181.6 167.2 179.2 1747 183.6 1816 177.8 170.8 172.3 167.2

External Debt

- Foreign Exchange Reserves 3.1 2.8 3.1 3.0 3.2 3.0 3.0 2.6 2.8 2.8
per Short term Debt (Times)
- External Debt per GDP (%) 38.0 382 367 366 377 388 395 394 383 382

For Thailand’s economic trends in 2014, a number of risk factors from a number of change or driving force factors
which have shown a continual down-turn due to late 2013. The severe and prolonged political conflicts occurring since
late 2013 and continuing on into 2014 will affect the economy as a whole. Consumption of the private sector is showing
a downward trend in concurrence with diminishing consumer confidence. Private sector investments are expected to
recover during the latter half of the year due to investors who decided to postpone their investment in order to monitor
and evaluate the directions of economic and political situations. The tourism sector that was growing well in 2013 will
also be affected in 2014. In addition, the political unrest and delayed appointment of a new cabinet will affect public
investment policy, including the 2 trillion baht infrastructure construction project and the 3.5 hundred billion baht water
management project with further delays in annual budgetary allocations, all of which will be barriers to Thai economic
growth in 2014.

However, the recovery of the global economy, especially in developed countries where the signs of recovery
have become more apparent, will help support the country’s export growth with the economies of our trade partners.
According to the Bank of Thailand’s latest figures, the Thai economy is predicted to grow at approximately 3.0 percent
while inflation grows at approximately 2-3 percent. The National Economic and Social Development Board (NESDB) has
predicted that the Thai economy will expand at 3-4 percent in 2014. The supporting factors come from the growth of
the export sector which is expected to recover along with the world economy, which is expected to grow at 3.6 percent.
Public spending is expected to grow at 2 percent, private investments at 3.8 percent and household spending at 1.4
percent.
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Overview of Real Estate Industry
Condition of Real Estate Industry in 2013
Registered housing units in the Bangkok and Vicinities

oo 200 20t 20 oo

Number of newly completed and registered housing (units)

1. Built by Developers

- Detached house 10,863 | 11,403 | 13,999 | 10,887 @ 13,484

- Semi-detached house 1,000 1,366 1,381 1,069 2,512

- Townhouse and shop house 9,771 11,707 | 11,614 11,218 | 21,234

- Condominium 53,725 | 59,919 | 34,734 | 78,391 | 69,532
Total of building by developers 75,359 | 84,395 61,728 | 101,565 106,762

2. Private construction

- Detached house 19,618 22,498 | 20,128 | 23,437 | 23,284

- Semi-detached house 138 154 81 104 131

- Townhouse and shop house 1,345 2,060 2,233 2,475 5,558
Total for private construction 21,101 | 24,712 22,442 | 26,016 @ 28,973
Total of newly completed and registered housing 96,460 | 109,107 84,170 | 127,581 135,735

Rate of change (%)

1. Built by Developers

- Detached house -19.16%  4.97% | 22.77% | -22.23% | 23.85%
- Semi-detached house -53.12% | 36.60% @ 1.10% -22.59% | 134.99%
- Townhouse and shop house -18.19% | 19.81% @ -0.79% | -3.41% @ 89.29%
- Condominium 57.79%  11.53% | -42.03%  125.69% -11.30%
Total of building by developers 22.41% 11.99% -26.86% 64.54% @ 5.12%

2. Private construction

- Detached house -14.38% | 14.68% | -10.53%  16.44% -0.65%

- Semi-detached house -15.34%  11.59% | -47.40%  28.40% | 25.96%

- Townhouse and shop house -49.68% | 53.16% | 8.40% 10.84% | 124.57%
Total for private construction -18.32%  17.11%  -9.19% | 15.93% 11.37%
Total of newly completed and registered housing 10.98% | 13.11% | -22.86% 51.58% | 6.39%

Proportion of each registered residence

- Detached house 31.60% | 31.07% @ 40.55% | 26.90% @ 27.09%
- Semi-detached house 1.18% 1.39% 1.74% 0.92% 1.95%

- Townhouse and shop house 11.52% | 12.62% | 16.45% | 10.73% | 19.74%
- Condominium 55.70% | 54.92% | 41.27% @ 61.44% | 51.23%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00%| 100.00% 100.00%
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Summary of Overall Real Estate Industry

According to REIC data on the number of registered completed homes in Bangkok Metropolitan and its surrounding
areas, 2013 registered homes constructed by business entrepreneurs in housing projects was 106,762 units, an
increase of 5.12% from 2012, mainly due to the increase of the horizontal residential houses which faced a downturn
during the beginning of 2012 as a result of the floods in late 2011. However, the number of registered condominium
units in 2013 dropped to 69,532 units from 78,391 units in 2012 or 11.30%, partly due to the rather high base in
2012. The registration of horizontal residential houses also increased and can be classified as follows: registered
single houses constructed by business entrepreneurs in 2013 amounted to 13,484 units, an increase of 23.85% from
the previous year, which was close to the recovery level of 2011. Registered townhouses and commercial buildings
constructed by business entrepreneurs amounted to 21,234 units, a high increase from the previous year of 89.29%,
partly due to the fact that townhouses in municipal and suburb areas replaced some of the condominium units because
condominium prices had increased significantly during the previous several years due to increases in land costs, so business
entrepreneurs reduced utility areas per unit to maintain selling prices at an acceptable level for consumers, making
townhouses, which have more utility area, at an acceptable price and able to replace some of the condominiums.

Registered houses constructed by homeowners amounted to 28,973 units, an increase of 11.37% from the previous year.

When the proportion of the registrations of each type of residential house is considered, condominium registration
was still found to be higher than 50% of all registered figures. In 2013, single home registration was 27.09% of the total
registered residences, a slight increase from the previous year’'s 26.90%. Duplex house registration was 1.95% of total
registered houses, an increase from 0.92% for the previous year. Townhouse and commercial building registration was
19.74% of the total registered houses, a huge increase from 10.73% for the previous year. Condominium registration

was down to 51.23% from the previous year’'s 61.44 %.

According to a survey of new projects conducted by Agency for Real Estate Affairs Co., Ltd. in 2013, there were
131,645 units of new supply for sale, an increase of 28.96% from 2012. Condominiums were most frequently opened
for sale, with 84,250 units for sale, an increase of 34.7% from 2012, or 64% of the total units for sale in 2013. For single
houses, 12,789 new units, an increase of 0.5% from 2012, were opened for sale. For townhouses, 28.047 new units,
an increase of 24.6% from 2012, were opened for sale. The percentages of new units per total available units for sale

were 9.71% and 21.31%, respectively.

Real Estate Industry Trends for 2014

The 2013 real estate industry trends are either horizontal or showing slight upward growth. If, however, the political
conflicts persist, real estate industry growth may fall into the negative zone. During January 2014, the political conflict
became more violent and caused impacts on the country’s economy, including the real estate industry because the
decision to buy a home will create a long-term obligation. Thus, in an uncertain situation or an economic downturn,
consumers tend to postpone or delay project visits as well as postpone the decision to purchase as they wait for the
situation to become clear. Thus, the political unrest that took place since in late 2013 and continued on into 2014 has
caused some consumers to postpone their decisions to buy until peace is restored to the political scene. Business

entrepreneurs also postpone the opening of new projects to wait for the situation to gain clarity.

Regardless, there are still positive factors such as low interest rates. The policy interest rate is 2.25 % and there
is a tendency that the Bank of Thailand’s Monetary Policy Committee may exercise financial policy with greater lenience
later on in 2014 to stimulate economic growth. In addition, many upcountry real estate markets continue to thrive and are
expected to continue to grow well in 2014 in line with regional economic growth. The coming of the ASEAN Economic
Community, or AEC, will stimulate trade and investment in member countries. If the situation of political conflict returns

to normal conditions, consumer purchasing power will return during the remaining part of the year.
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Risk Factors

In the business operation of the Company, the potential risks affecting to the operation of the Company in the
future are as followed:;

1. Risks arising from economic slow-down

The real estate development sector is a closely linked business sector moving in the same direction as
economic conditions. If overall economic conditions are sluggish or slowed down, there is generally impact on
consumer confidence and buying power because the decision to buy a residence creates a long-term obligation.
Therefore, if future economic conditions or direction are sluggish, the situation will become a factor causing
consumers to delay purchases in order to monitor the situation. In last 2013, events occurred in relation to political
conflict leading to prolong protesting which caused the closure of several main roads in Bangkok in the beginning
of 2014. The aforementioned events have had impact on the economy as a whole with effects on consumer
confidence and consideration in residential buying. Consequently, some consumers have made the decision to

postpone buying in order to monitor the situation until conditions return to normal.

Risks related to the economic slow-down in 2014 are considered to be greater than the risks faced in
2013. Nevertheless, the direction of the global economic recovery showing clear signs of recovery in developed
countries can help support improvements in the Thai export sector while the continuing low interest rates can help
support economic growth. The Company has closely monitored and assessed the risks incurred by economic
conditions in terms of domestic and foreign economies by considering the situation together in meetings of the
Company’s board of directors and executives in order to closely evaluate economic conditions and future trends.
The aforementioned risks will be properly applied to changes in corporate planning and strategy in concurrence
with the direction of economic conditions during each period of time.

2. Risks arising from political conflict in Thailand

The political conflict occurring in Thailand rapidly escalated into expanding political protests in late 2013
after the government passed the draft of an amnesty bill triggering widespread dissatisfaction. This discord led
to protests against the aforementioned bill. These protests were the upgraded into protests aimed at deposing
the government and reforming the country. These protests with such large numbers of participants prompted the
prime minister to decide to dissolve parliament on 9 December 2013. Regardless, the protesters kept on protest-
ing in order to demand that the caretaker prime minister and cabinet resign in order to create a political vacuum
and demand national reform before an election. These protests have been ongoing and are likely to continue into
early 2014. Moreover, the protests have been scaled up with closures of several main roads in Bangkok as the
situation has grown in severity at various sites by groups of ill-intentioned people until there have been injuries and
deaths. This political unrest with escalating violence has had impact on consumer confidence. If the aforementioned
conflicts are prolonged, the Company may be subject to impact on new sales because some consumers,
particularly in Bangkok Metropolitan and its surrounding areas, will postpone decisions to buy homes so they can wait
and watch for the situation to return to normal. Nevertheless, the Company’s strategies for the past couple of years
have been geared toward investment in regional markets in various provinces with capacity for such investments,
e.g. Chonburi, Rayong, Chacherngsao and Nakhoratchasima, in a total of six projects which have been welcomed
by the market rather well. The Company’s aforementioned additional project expansion into regional markets is
considered one type of geographical risk management. The regional markets have been subject to less impact
due to the political conflict than Bangkok Metropolitan and its surrounding areas, which are home to the political
protest sites.
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Risks arising from natural disasters

At the end of the year 2011, Thailand suffered from the most severe flood crisis in 50 years, which widely
caused impacts and damages totaling over 1.2 trillion Baht. The real estate sector was affected directly and
indirectly from this situation, resulting to the buying decision of consumers, especially the project located
in the severe flood-affected area. In addition, some consumers decided to change locations from severe
flood-affected area to no flood-affected area. Some consumers changed their minds to buy accommodation in form of
condominium instead.

Regarding to the Company, the risk management is provided to various aspects, such as, the project opening
in many areas, which is the original business operation principle of the Company. As a result, the impact of the
flood is limited to some projects only. Many projects of the Company are located in no flood-affected areas. It is
considered to be the management of risk sharing in terms of location which the Company is aware of this prior to
the flood situation. Additionally, the Company also shared the risk of products by expanding more vertical projects
in 2012. Furthermore, the Company also expanded the projects to the region market where 6 projects have been
launched in the Eastern part and North-eastern part of Thailand.

Risks arising from interest rate fluctuation

In 2013, the monetary policy committee, Bank of Thailand reduced policy rate for 2 times in May and November.
From the rate at the beginning of 2013 at 2.75% was reduced to 2.25% at the end of year. For the minimum loan
rate (MLR) of commercial banks, which is the factor influencing on ability to purchase of consumers, was reduced
to 6.875% from 7.00% at the beginning of year (refer rate from Bangkok Bank).

Regarding to the fluctuation of interest rate, if it increases, it may affect to the ability to accommodation
purchase of consumers, including the financial cost of the Company. However, the risk factor in this aspect was
limited in 2014 from the tendency of possibly stable or slightly decreased interest rate for the purpose of stimulating
economy. In addition, since the liability of the Company was in the low level, the interest expenses were also low
comparing to the revenue of the Company. Plus, the Company strictly managed the risk from interest fluctuation
and its financial liquidity, for example, issuing long-term bonds, selling bill of exchange for short-term liquidity
adjustment and financial cost reduction, discussing with financial institutes for making long-term agreement with
a stable interest rate, regularly following up domestic and international financial circumstance. These issues
were discussed in the meeting of Executive Committee every time in order to evaluate and manage situations
appropriately and promptly.

Risks arising from the rise of construction cost

During year 2011 — 2012, the price of main construction materials increased due to the production cost
(cost push), the governmental policy on the increment of minimum wage to 300 Baht/day, the increased price of
oil, and so on. Moreover, the rise of construction material price also resulted from the demand pull from the real
estate sector which constructed more condominiums and horizontal projects, repaired damages arising from
the flood crisis, and used in the construction of large public utility project of the Government. However, in 2013
the oil price was steady; and in the second half of year Thailand’s economy shown slowdown trend which eased
private investment and demand of construction materials. Therefore the risk from increasing of construction cost
is quite limit in the year 2014. Also the Company strictly managed the risk of construction material cost by mostly
purchasing main materials on its own. Since the Company had many projects, the negotiation power was fairly
high and it was able to agree with the seller for big lot purchase. In addition, the Company closely followed up the
movement of major construction material price, both the domestic and international marketing direction. In case
the Company considered and discovered that the price tendency would be higher, it would establish the fixed
price in advance. The Company would negotiate with suppliers for important products, such as, steel, floor deck,
roof, etc., in order to determine the fixed price of important construction material throughout the year. Additionally,
the Company attempts to find other qualified alternative products and apply new construction technologies as
appropriate.
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Risks arising from lack of skilled labors in construction works

The unemployed rate in Thailand has been in the low level for consecutive years which cause the lack of
labors in some fields of work. In addition, by reason of the expanding in construction and real estate sector, the
expanding investment in large public utility projects, both roads and railway mass transportation system, of the
Government, and the improving growth of the agricultural sector, some labors in the construction sector move to
their hometowns for operating agriculture. As a result, the lack of labor in the construction sector was increasingly
severe in the past few years. It is estimated that this issue will continue to the year 2013. However, the Company
has the policy of risk management in this aspect by applying new construction technologies to replace some
previous construction system, which can reduce labors. For example, the tunnel form construction system is
applied to the construction of town houses and the precast system is applied to the construction of single houses
and condominiums. Moreover, the Company assigns the section responsible for supervising and studying
new construction technologies, both domestic and international, in order to consider the appropriateness and
application. Additionally, the Company plans to retain the former contractors by continuously and regularly
assigning construction works so that contractors are able to support their own labors, building the good relationship
with contractors of the Company; such as, holding banquets, awarding contractors having the best performance;
and distributing construction works based on skills and abilities of each contractor. The Company will also establish
project construction manager, project engineer, head of project construction supervisor, construction works
supervisor, and quality control officers to control and oversee construction works of contractors so that the quality
of construction works of each contractor will be assured.

Risk arising from the control measure of loan to value (LTV) ratio

In November, 2010, Bank of Thailand (BOT.) has established the control measure to prevent the economic
bubble in real estate business by issuing the criteria supervising commercial banks in home loan at the price
below 10 million Baht. It determines that housing loan for condominium must not be over 90% of the security value.
This is effective since January 1, 2011 onwards. Afterwards, there is the 1-year extension of enforcement period
for the horizontal accommodation, so it will be effective in 2013. The enforcement of this LTV measure is not the
control of loan as specified in the measure only, but if the commercial banks loan in the specified LTV criteria, the
calculation of BIS ration will be only 35% of the loan. If the commercial banks loan over the specified LTV criteria,
the calculation of BIS ration will be added to 75% of the loan. This affects to the ratio of capital dividing by BIS
ration and the capital of commercial banks will increase.

The result of such LTV control measure will make persons requiring home purchase to save more money
before buying houses. In case that the loan request is in the amount higher than that specified by the measure,
commercial banks may loan in the higher interest rate in order to compensate such increasing capital. However,
the Company believes that the issuance of LTV control measure will produce advantages to the housing business
in the long term. The Company is quite limited to the risk affected from such measure because most products of
the Company is in the group of horizontal accommodation and customers are in the real demand group purchasing
for the actual application. These customers normally decide before purchasing the accommodations and have
some savings. Previously, the customers will deposit the down payment not less than 5-10% to the project, so the

impact of LTV measure is limited.
Risks arising from more stringent loan offerings by commercial banks

Commercial banks have recently become stricter in their consideration of credit and loans concerning
both loans for entrepreneurs (pre-finance) and loans for consumers (post-finance). Furthermore, it is likely that
commercial banks will become even more stringent in 2014. In terms of pre-financing, commercial banks began
to increase stringency in financial support for projects during the past year by setting various additional terms,
particularly for groups of people with no previous experience in the real estate business and groups of non-listed
companies. Hence, those companies are finding it more and more difficult to access sources of financial support
which can be considered an advantage for the industrial sector in helping to increase market supply. Business-wise,

risks are incurred with such low access to monetary sources. Due to the Company’s strong financial status,
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10.

our debt-equity ratio is very low in comparison to the industry average. Furthermore, the Company has a good
history of long-term financial discipline without ever applying for debt restructuring or non-performing loans with
any financial institution, even in during the economic crisis in 1997. Hence, the Company is well-known by various
commercial banks. Apart from this, the Company has made succinct financial plans with preparation of sufficient
liquidity and in concurrence with the Company’s plans for business growth. In 2013, the Company discharged
debentures valued at 630 million THB with a maturity of three years and an interest rate of 4.75 percent via four
of the Company’s commercial banks. Moreover, the Company has also prepared sufficient long- and short-term
lines of credit for business growth in line with the Company’s plans, including sufficient liquidity to handle severe
economic deceleration.

In terms of credit for consumers (post finance) last year, commercial banks have also been stricter in their
considerations, partly due to the figures for household debts which escalated late last year. The current conditions
in which the personal credit industry is enjoying rapid growth have had impact on consumer spending behavior
where consumers spend money in advance via personal credit, e.g. credit cards and various personal loans, and
this has had the effect of reducing the home buying power of consumers. At the same time, commercial banks
have stricter criteria in considering loans for people who want to buy homes. For home purchases, most customers
need to rely on loans from commercial banks for approximately 90 — 95 percent of the home price. Therefore, the
Company’s realized income inevitably depends upon the consideration of commercial banks in granting loans.
If commercial banks become stricter, the Company’s realized income may be reduced in conjunction with sales
due to some customers who are refused loans by commercial banks. Nevertheless, the Company has closely
monitored consumer conditions and the policy of each commercial bank in granting loans in order to revise policy
as suitable for each period of time. In addition, the Company cooperated with some commercial banks in order
to propose special conditions for customers buying homes in the Company’s projects, e.g. granting loans for 100
percent of the home price at a lower interest rate than the market and step payment programs, etc.

Risk arising from the construction of pre-built homes

Following the economic crisis, most entrepreneurs apply the strategy of semi-pre-built homes to create the
confidence of consumers. Such strategy is necessary to spend the high cost which probably causes the risk of
financial liquidity and the risk arising from the changing behavior of consumers. However, the Company has the
low level of such risk because the Company has studied the behavior of consumers thoroughly and established
the construction plan efficiently. The plan is to combine the products, such as, pre-built home, semi pre-built home,
and built-to-order home. The beginning of the construction depends on the estimation of sales. In addition, since
the Company has the low ratio of liability per capital, the strict policy of cash flow management, and the large
amount of excess equity in any financial institutes, so the Company has the extremely low risk of financial liquidity
shortage.

Risk factor from land procurement for project development

Over the years, the price of lands in some locations, especially the location nearby sky train and areas
providing new developed utilities, such as, extension line of BTS, new line of BTS, extension line of roads and
expressways, etc., dramatically increased since the economy and real estate business expanded by reasons
of the increasing accommodation demand of citizens and the expansion of regional market. This resulted to the
higher price of lands in provincial areas which increased rapidly in such period.

In addition, land procurement for project development is necessary to carefully study the use of such land,
including the financial and marketing feasibility, and also consider relevant laws, such as, City Planning Act, etc.
However, the new City Planning Act which was announced in 2013 has been modified the use of land in some
locations. In acquiring land, it's necessary to study of land use act. Some types of accommodation may be unable
to construct in some locations. Also has to study the provisions of Floor Area Ratio — FAR and Open Space Ratio —
OSR, including the provisions of the environment permit. All of these are risks that may occur from land acquisition.
Nevertheless, the Company strictly manages the risk from land purchase by studying marketing feasibility, deeply
analyzing returns obtained from the investment of each land, and studying limitations of laws and other regulations
of each land before buying. The decision of land purchase will be considered carefully and approved by the
Executive Committee.
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Shareholding Structure and Management

Corporate securities

1. Ordinary Shares

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had registered capital equivalent to 925,000,000 Baht, of which
825,000,000 Baht was paid-up. This comprises 825,000,000 ordinary shares carrying a par value of 1 Baht per

share.

According to Thai NVDR Co., Ltd.’s data, 114,600,400 of the Company’s ordinary shares were held by in-
vestors investing through non-voting depository receipts (NVDRs) as of August 31, 2013, representing 13.89%

of all paid-up shares. As such shares are not entitled to a voting right (except for a decision to delist the stock),

the holders of non-NVDR shares have 16.13% more of the voting right. As a result, holders of only 21.53% of the

paid-up ordinary shares will have a voting right equal to 25% of all voting shares. The investors can check the

most updated names of company’s stock holders investing through Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. at The Stock Exchange

of Thailand’s website (www.set.or.th)

2. Debentures

As of December 31, 2013, the company had outstanding debentures as below.

2.1) Unsecured debentures No.1/2012 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 1/2012 Due B.E. 2015

Types of Debenture

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without deben-
ture holder’s representative Debentures

Amount

300,000 Units

Subscription Price

1,000 Baht

Value 300 Million Baht

Offering Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
Issue Date July 13, 2012

Maturity Date July 15, 2015

Interest Rate

Fixed coupon rate of 5.25%

Interest Payment

Quarterly

Principal Payment

Bullet principal payment at maturity on July 15, 2015

Early Redemption

None

Underwriter

Asia Plus Securities Public Company Limited

Registrar

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Secondary Market

Thai BMA
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2.2) Unsecured debentures No.2/2012 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public
Company Limited No. 2/2012 Due B.E. 2015

Types of Debenture

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without
debenture holder’s representative Debentures

Amount

500,000 Units

Subscription Price

1,000 Baht

Value 500 Million Baht
Offering Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/[HNW)
Issue Date September 13, 2012

Maturity Date

September 13, 2015

Interest Rate

Fixed coupon rate of 5.30%

Interest Payment

Quarterly

Principal Payment

Bullet principal payment at maturity on September 13, 2015

Early Redemption

None

Underwriter CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Registrar Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Secondary Market

Thai BMA

2.3) Unsecured debentures No.1/2013  Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public
Company Limited No. 1/2013 Due B.E. 2016

Types of Debenture

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without
debenture holder’s representative Debentures

Amount

630,000 Units

Subscription Price

1,000 Baht

Value 630 Million Baht

Offering Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
Issue Date July 26, 2013

Maturity Date July 26, 2016

Interest Rate

Fixed coupon rate of 4.75%

Interest Payment

Quarterly

Principal Payment

Bullet principal payment at maturity on July 26, 2016

Early Redemption

None

Underwriter Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited

United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Registrar Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Secondary Market

Thai BMA
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Top 10 major Shareholders as of August 30, 2013

As of August 30, 2013, the top 10 Shareholders as recorded in the Shareholder Registrar are presented as follows.

No. Name of Shareholder Number of Shares %
1 Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul 283,502,750 34.36
2 Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong 233,502,750 28.30
3 Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. 114,600,400 13.89
4 Mr.Tanakrit Saimuckka 25,848,300 3.13
5 Chase Nominees Limited 1 25,000,000 3.03
6 Mr. Kenneth Rudy Kamon 22,858,100 2.77
7 Mr.Supoth Lerdritipan 15,535,800 1.88
8 Mr.Chaiporn Rewtakoon 10,255,600 1.24
9 Mr.Tosapond Saimuckka 9,879,800 1.20
10 Mr.Chana Torwon 7,700,000 0.93
Company has group of shareholder which might vote in the same direction as follow.
No. Name of Shareholder Number of Shares %
Group of Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong
1 Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong 233,502,750 28.30
2 Mrs.Paetai Watcharakkawong 5,000,000 0.61
Group of Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul
3 Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul 283,502,750 34.36
4 Mrs.Kannika Chakarakul 5,000,000 0.61
5  Mr.Churat Chakarakul 2,500,000 0.30
6 Miss.Usana Chakarakul 2,500,000 0.30

Dividend payment policy

The Company has a policy to provide dividends in the rate of not less than 30 percent of net profit after taxes,

barring any exceptional circumstances and so long as such payment does not significantly affect the normal operations

of the Company. The decision to offer dividends takes into account various factors, such as the Company’s operating

performance and financial status; liquidity; business expansion; and other factors relating to corporate administration.

The dividend pay-out must be approved by Shareholders as appropriate, as well as the Board of Directors. In 2013,

the Company announced a dividend payment to Shareholders in the rate of 0.245 Baht per share. Under normal condi-

tions, the Company’s shares provide a dividend that is higher than the interest deposit rate quoted by most commercial

banks.

Historical Dividend Payments

2007 2008 2010 2011 2013
Net Profit / Share (Baht) 0.1456 0.2168 0.3958 0.3557 0.3263 0.5083
Dividend Paid / Share (Baht) 0.06 0.09 0.185 0.18 0.18 0.245
Dividend Paid / Net Profit (%) 41.20%  41.51% 46.74%  50.60%  55.16%  48.20%
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Management Structure
1) The Board of Directors

In 2013, the Board of Directors convened a total of 5 meetings and as of December 31, 2013, the Board had

7 members. Of this number, 3 were Independent Directors, with details as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong Chairman

2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director & Executive Chairman

3. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Director, Independent Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee
4. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Director, Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
5. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Director, Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
6. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director & Executive Director

7. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Director & Executive Director

Mr. Seri Sintuas serves as Company Secretary.

The Company’s Directors authorized to enter into binding obligations in accordance with the Company’s

Articles of Association comprise a total of 3 Directors as follows.

1. Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong 2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul 3. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk

Two in three of the following individuals are authorised signatories, together with the Company seal.

Scope of duties and authorities of the Board of Directors

1.

Manage the Company in accordance with laws, the objectives, Articles of Association and resolutions of
Shareholders’ Meetings

Formulate policies and determine the direction for operations, financial management and business risk management;
oversee management operations in line with the predetermined policies with efficiency and effectiveness
Consistent responsibility to Shareholders; protect the interests of Shareholders; disclose information with
accuracy, completeness, to standard and with transparency

Authority to appoint any number of Directors as Executive Directors for performing one or more tasks, except
those prescribed by law as requiring the mandate of Shareholder’'s Meeting resolutions.

Transactions in which Directors or other individuals may have a potential conflict of interest or vested interest,
or any other form of conflict of interest with the Company obligate the said Director to refrain from exercising
or casting votes concerning the matter in question

Board of Directors’ Meetings are required to be held at least every 3 months

Regular Shareholders’ Meetings are to be organised within 4 months of the end of the Company’s
accounting year.

Directors may not engage in any business or have shareholdings in other juristic persons of a similar nature
with the Company’s business, or that are competitors to the Company, except as informed to Shareholders

prior to appointment as a Director

2) Management

As of December 31, 2013, the Company’s Management Board comprised 7 individuals as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Managing Director

2. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Deputy Managing Director

3. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Assistant Managing Director

4. Mr. Korn Thanapipatsiri Assistant Managing Director

5. Mr. Narong Sangarsongkogk Senior Project Construction Director

6. Mrs. Kanittha Tumviseth Accounting and Information System Manager
7. Mr. Seri Sintuas Finance Manager
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Scope of authorities and responsibilities of the Managing Director
The Managing Director is responsible for performing any ordinary operating activities as assigned by the

Board of Directors or the Executive Committee specified under the rules and regulations of the company. The

ordinary operating activities of the company are defined as follows:

» Toapprove the purchase of the construction material and any relevant services for the benefits of the company.
This shall not include the purchase of the land.

« To approve the operating expenses, selling and administrative expenses and investments to be in accor-
dance with the budget approved by the Board of Director or the Executive Committee. This shall not include
any loans or guarantee.

. Such Managing Director shall not perform any operations that may lead him or any person to have a conflict

of interest with the company or the subsidiaries.
3) Company Secretary

The appointment of the Company Secretary relies on the discretion of the Company’s board of directors
because the board of directors is responsible for the appointment of a Company Secretary to handle meetings
of the Company’s board of directors, shareholders’ meetings and various activities of the Company’s board of
directors in order to help the board of directors and the Company practice in compliance with related laws and
regulations. At Board of Directors Meeting 3/2556 on 13 August 2013 Mr. Seri Sintuas was appointed to the position
of Company Secretary to replace Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk. The appointment became effective as of 14 August

2016 onward until the present.

Company Secretary Scope of Authority and Duties

1. Manages shareholders’ meetings and board of directors’ meetings in compliance with the law as well

as the Company’s rules and regulations as well as the code of best practice.

2. Reports resolutions and policy of the Company’s board of directors and shareholders to the executives

involved and monitors practice in compliance with resolutions and policies.

3. Offers preliminary advice to the Company’s board of directors on issues involving the law and the Com-
pany’s rules and regulations as required by the board of directors and monitors practice for accurate

and regular compliance, including reports on changes in legal specifications relevant to the directors.

4. Records minutes to the shareholders’ meetings and meetings of the Company’s board of directors,
including follow-up on practice in compliance with resolutions passed by the meetings of shareholders
and the Company’s board of directors.

5. Compiles and stores reports on stakeholders reported by the directors and executives in addition to
other important certificates or documents, e.g. company registration, letters scheduling meetings of the
Company’s board of directors, minutes to the meetings of the Company’s board of directors, annual
reports and letters scheduling shareholders’ meetings with the minutes to shareholders’ meetings.

6. Handles disclosure of information and informative reports under obligation to report to the agencies regu-
lating the Company in compliance with the official rules, regulations and specifications of those agencies.

7. Contacts and communicates with general shareholders to inform them of various rights or privileges

granted to shareholders and to also keep them informed about Company news.
8. Handles the activities of the Company’s board of directors.

9. Performs other tasks as stipulated by the law or as assigned by the Company’s board of directors or as
notified by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.
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4) Remuneration for Directors and Management

# of attended Remuneration Total Amount
(BMillion)

1. Monetary remuneration

NamejefiRilectors e Board of Audit Meeting Remuneration
Director | Committee | Allowance (BMillion)
(BMillion)
1. Mr.Taveesak Chairman 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05
Watcharakkawong
2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director & Executive Chairman 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05
3. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Director, Independent 5/5 5/5 0.05 0.50 0.55
Director & Chairman of the Audit
Committee
4. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Director, Independent Director 5/5 5/5 0.05 0.40 0.45
& Member of the Audit
Committee
5. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Director, Independent Director 4/5 4/5 0.04 0.40 0.44
& Member of the Audit
Committee
6. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk | Director & Executive Director 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05
7. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Director & Executive Director 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05
EREY 0.34 1.30 1.64

(b)  Remuneration for Executive Directors and management as of the end of 2013 was provided in the

form of salary, transportation allowance and bonuses, totaling 26.71 million Baht.
2. Other remuneration

- none

5) Personnel

The Company accords a high importance to its personnel and offers various benefits for employees, such as :
1. Housing loans, provided by the Government Housing Bank
2 Provident funds
3. Social security
4 Financial assistance for various events such as entering the monkhood, marriage, maternity leave,

injury, housing, natural disasters, or death of an employee or their immediate relatives and spouse.

Moreover, the Company values the importance of safety in the workplace. Consequently, the company has
organized annually fire drills and activities related to safety. Also, the company has promoted 5S activity in orga-

nization, and arranged to check the elevator in company’s building monthly.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had a total of 352 employees (not including Directors and management),

categorized according to the major operations as follows.
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Full-time Part-time Total

Project Sites 95 - 95
Construction 105 33 138
Head Office 119 - 119

Total 319 88 352

In 2013, employees received remuneration in the form of salaries and bonuses totaling 112.80 million Baht.

Personnel development policies

The Company has a policy encouraging systematic and ongoing human resources development. As necessary,
the Company prepares the annual employee training plan for staff at all levels of the organization, to enhance their
knowledge and capabilities. This in turn leads to pay-offs reflected in the quality of the Company’s products and services
for ultimate customer satisfaction, which is the highest ideal of the business. Personnel development begins as soon
as an employee is hired, with obligatory orientation, courses to instill a service minded approach and other programs
relevant to their job in the Company. In addition, the annual training plans provide for normal training courses and special
training projects targeting both general employees and management. Programs include training for service and sales;
training for work supervision and project quality standards; as well as MBA and Mini MBA programs for the Company’s

management.

In addition to personnel development as per the annual training plan, the Company has set up a special personnel

development department for ‘star’ employees with exceptional potential. They are offered Individual Development

Programs to enhance their knowledge and skills, with a view to assuming management positions in the future.
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Corporate Governance

1. Corporate Governance Policy

Lalin Property public company limited recognizes the essence of the good corporate governance as an important
factor to lead the company to have the efficient system and a foundation for the sustainable growth of the company.
To be in accordance with the 2006 principles of Good Corporate Governance for listed companies set by the SET, the
Company has implemented the good corporate governance to be a practice guideline. The details of the policy are as

follows:

1.1 Rights of Shareholders

The company always recognizes and respects the rights of the shareholders. These rights include the rights
to purchase/ sell or transfer the shares, profit sharing, sufficiently access to company’s information, attend the
meeting to vote at the shareholder’s meeting.

The annual general meeting of shareholders shall be held annually within 4 months after the end of accounting
period. The notice of this meeting and the meeting agendas including the meeting document shall be sent to the
shareholders at least 14 days before the shareholders’ meeting and shall be advertised on the daily newspaper at
least 3 consecutive days. Moreover, the company shall have the notice of the meeting and the meeting document
posted on the website of the company (www.lalinproperty.com) not less than 30 days before the meeting. In this
case all shareholders shall have enough time to study and look through the entire meeting document and be well
preparing for the meeting.

The notice of meeting shall include information such as date, time and venue of the meeting, including
location map and all relevant supporting documents that shall be used for making decision at the meeting. Moreover,
in the notice of meeting, the company should also inform all shareholders the meeting rules, including the Articles
of Association on the Shareholder Meeting, meeting regulations and practice, procedures and documents to be
presented by shareholders before attending the meeting for both cases whereby the shareholders are attending
the meeting in person and by proxy. The proxy forms of type A, B and C are attached at the end of this notice
letter as for the convenience of the shareholder to appoint their proxy. Moreover, the postage is provided by
the company on the meeting date for the convenience of the proxy. For the shareholders who cannot attend the
meeting, such shareholders can appoint any independent director to vote on their behalf.

Furthermore, for the convenience of the shareholder meeting, the company has set the appropriate date,
time and venue of the meeting by not having the meeting on the bank holiday. The company also set the meeting
to be held during 8.00 a.m.- 4.00 p.m. and the venue to be located at the area whereby it is easy to access for all
shareholders. For the past meetings, the company has always chosen the venue which is nearby the BTS, MRT
station as for the convenience of the shareholders to commute. At the annual general meeting of shareholders,
the company shall open for registration at least 2 hours before the commencement of the meeting in order to
provide sufficient time for all shareholders to register and to hold welcome reception for shareholders attending
the meeting.

The company allows shareholders who join the meeting after the meeting has already commenced to vote
on agenda items that are in the process of being considered and do not yet have a resolution.

In the agenda of directors’ election, the company provides opportunities for shareholders to vote on
individual directors. The invitation letter will have accompanying documents with details of the directors nominated
for election including their education and working experience backgrounds, shareholding in the company, and
the record of their meeting attendance in the passing year. Shareholders; therefore, have sufficient information to
support their consideration in voting.

At each shareholder meeting, the company shall give all shareholders equal opportunity to present their

opinions and suggestion, including raise questions at the end of each agenda. Moreover, the company shall
provide sufficient time for further discussion whereby the chairman of the meeting, directors and the management
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shall equally pay attention to every question and give the clear answers. A clear and complete minute shall be
recorded with total votes of each agenda. The company issued and submitted the minutes of the meeting to Stock
Exchange of Thailand and Ministry of Commerce within 14 days as specified by law, and posted on company’s
website for interested shareholders to read and examine the information.

At the 2013 annual general meeting of shareholders, 6 directors, from the total of 7 persons, are attending
the meeting. These directors include Chairman, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Managing Director, C.F.O. and
high level management from each important department whereby these people are required to attend the meeting

in order to answer the inquiries of the shareholders.

1.2 Equal Treatment to Shareholders

The company has treated all shareholders equally and fairly no matter the shareholder is the executive
director or non-executive director or has the alien nationality. The Company prepares the shareholders’ meeting
documents in both Thai and English.

The company offers the opportunity for shareholders who cannot attend the meeting in person by letting them
appoint other persons to attend the meeting and vote on their behalf. When sending out the notice of meeting,
the company shall have the proxy form attached with the letter every time. Such shareholders can determine
their voting direction and appoint at least 1 person to be their proxy. Moreover, the company has provided the
postage at the registration area in front of the meeting room for the convenience of the proxy in case they have
not affix the postage.

For this annual general meeting of shareholders, after the details of each agenda have been explained then
the shareholders will be given equal opportunity to raise the questions and present their opinions to the meeting. The
voting ballots shall be distributed to shareholders attending the meeting for voting especially for the disapproved
votes or abstained votes. Moreover, the company has separated each agenda from one another so that the
shareholders can vote each agenda independently, for example, agenda on the election of directors. For this
agenda, the shareholders can vote for directors individually and then the voting ballots shall be collected from
all shareholders.

The company also sets the policy that directors and the management shall not use the material internal
information of the company that has not been disclosed to the public for their own or other benefits, including
buying/ selling securities of the company. The company has a management procedure for the case whereby the
management uses the internal information of the company for their own or other benefits. The details of procedures
are as follows:

+ Inform the directors and the management their obligation to report on their holding securities including
those securities held by their partners and minors and report on the changes in securities investment
specified under Section 39 and the Determination of Punishment under Section 275 of the Securities
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

» Circulate the memo to directors and the management informing that directors and the management,
who have received the material internal information that may effect on the prices of the securities, shall
avoid or temporarily stop the purchase/ sale of the company’s securities for 1 month. Moreover, they
shall not disclose material information to other persons before the financial statement or such internal
information has been disclosed to the public. In order to monitor and examine the abovementioned
operation, the company has set the policy that the management shall report the holding securities and
changes in securities as specified under Section 59 to the Board of Directors.

1.3 Roles of Stakeholders

The company is aware of the rights of each group of stakeholders, either internal stakeholders or external
stakeholders e.g. customers, shareholders, competitors, related government agencies and employees, including
social and environmental responsibilities. The company also encourages the cooperation between the company
and the stakeholders in order to promote the sustainable growth of the company in a long term. The details are
shown as follows

* Customers :

1. The company has emphasized on promoting the satisfaction of the customers by offering customers with
good quality products and great service to be accordance with our determination “to build the house
with good willingness”.
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The company has emphasized on developing the quality of the products. As such, the product research
and development unit has been established in order to study the requirements of the customers and
continuously develop quality of products.

The company has set the quality control for the houses built by the contractor. The inspection shall
be conducted by the supervisor, head of supervisor, engineers and project manager, respectively.
Moreover, to ensure the quality of the house, the company has set the centralized quality control unit to
inspect the quality of the houses.

To enhance the efficiency of the after sale service, the company has set the Customer Relationship
Management (CRM) unit to resolve any problems of the customers and organize the events of each
project of the company.

The company has communicated with the customers via the website of the company and the quarterly
newsletter to update the news and other activities to customers.

» Shareholders :

1.

The company determines to be a good representative of the shareholders by considering a good return
and maximizing long term shareholder’s wealth.

2. The company has communicated with the shareholders via the website of the company to update the
news of the company e.g. details and supporting document of the shareholder meeting, etc.

3. The company is welcomed any inquiries or questions raised by the shareholders and investors via the
telephone or at the meeting.

* Creditors :

1. The company complies with the terms of loans and obligations to its creditors including business
creditors, financial institutes, and company’s bondholders.

2. The company always carefully considers and manages its risks in doing business. Thus, company is only

a few companies in property development sector that has never been NPLs with any financial institutes
during Asian financial crisis in 1997

* Trading partners :

1.

The company continuously promotes the cooperation and maintains good relationship with their trading
partners e.g cooperating with the partners in producing the roof in the specific color of the company and
cooperating with the commercial banks to offer a special interest rate to the customers of the company.

The company has treated the partners fairly and appropriately under the condition and trade agreement.
The company has always made the payment to the partners on time every week.

» Competitors :

1.

The company has operated under the competitive rules. As such, the company shall not destroy the
reputation of the competitors with some negative accusation.

The company operates its business with professional. There is no violation of competitor confidentiality

or deception to get the confidential information of the competitors. As for now the company has no
disputes with their competitors.

* Employees :

1.

The company believes that employees are valuable assets and treats all employees equally and fairly
by offering the fair and appropriate remunerations and fringe benefits.

The company offers several fringe benefits to employees, for example, employee home loans with the
Government Housing Bank, Retirement Mutual Funds, health insurance card to all employees, including
some contribution money in the events of ordination, marriage, maternity, iliness, disaster to your home
and funeral of the parents, child, partner or employee.

The company has continuously provided employees with training. The company shall study the
requirement and develop the annual training plan to employees in all level to enhance their knowledge
and capabilities. Apart from the annual training plan designed to employees in all levels, the company
has specially designed the individual development program for the high potential employees (star) to
enhance their knowledge and capabilities to a higher level and to become the management in the future.
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4. The company has emphasized on environment and safety issues in the workplace by organizing regular
fire drills, activities related to safety, 5S, and arranging for monthly elevator maintenance.

* Mass Medium :

1. The company has emphasized on disclosure company’s information to mass medium; therefore, public
can receive the correct and timely information. The company also organizes various projects in order
to keep good relationship with mass medium such as arranging a company’s site visit and cooperating
in several social activities.

» Community and Social :

1. The company is responsible for the environment, social and community. Therefore, the company has
regularly involved in several social activities, such as, offering some contributions to disaster victims,
giving out the scholarships to students every year, etc. Some of activities in 2013 are revealed under

“Corporate social responsibility” section.

In case shareholders and stakeholders didn’t received fair treatment from the company, the company
has established a channel for them to contact, fle complaints or provide information through the internal audit
department at the address below, in order to verify information, investigate the truth and proceed according to the

Company’s procedures and report to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors if any crucial issues found.

Internal Audit Department - Lalin Property Public Company Limited
222/2 Lalin Property Tower, 2nd floor

Srinakarin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi

Bangkok 10240

Tel: 0-2732-1041-5 # 310 Fax: 0-2377-9656

1.4 Disclosure and Transparency

The company has emphasized on equally disclosing the correct and transparent material information of the
company, including the financial statement and non-financial information to investors and related persons in a timely
manner. The company has set up one unit to be responsible for the investor relations. Its responsibility includes
communicating with the investors and related persons through several communication channels e.g. news release
via the Stock Exchange of Thailand, performance press release to the analyst, press release, telephone, e-mail

and website of the company.

The Investor Relations department will be responsible for disclosing important information and answering
queries to investors. Interested investors can view company’s financial statement as well as importance operating
performance from the Company’s website at www.lalinproperty.com or contact Investor Relations department for

more information at:

Investor Relations Department - Lalin Property Public Company Limited
222/2 Lalin Property Tower, 2nd floor

Srinakarin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi

Bangkok 10240

Tel: 0-2732-1041-5 # 202 Fax: 0-2377-9656

In the annual report, the company shall report the responsibilities of the Board towards the financial report
along with the auditor’s report, including the roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Audit Committee and the
Executive Committee. This includes the number of the meeting and the number of attendance by each director
in the past year. Moreover, the company should disclose the remunerations (including those in money term and
other benefits) of the directors, Audit Committee and the management of the company in the annual report and
the report 56-1.
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1.5 Responsibility of the Board of Directors
1.5.1 Structure of the Board

The Board of Directors comprises of persons with good knowledge, capabilities and experience in
various areas. The Board is responsible for setting the vision, approval of the business direction, policy,
strategy and goal of the company in order for the management to use as a guideline in developing the
annual business plan, supporting plan and budget. The key performance indicators (KPIs) system is used
to monitor the performance. In order to have a clear roles and responsibility, the Board has set the clear

roles and responsibilities of the Board, Audit Committee, Executive Committee and the managing director.

The Board of Directors comprises of 7 persons. Of that amount, 3 of them are the directors who are
the management and another 4 are not the management. Of those 4 directors who are not the management,
3 of them are the independent directors and in the Audit Committee whereby this figure is more than
one-third of total directors, this gives them the authority in examining the operations of the company and
balancing the power of other directors. Moreover, the Chairman of the Board shall not be the same person
as the managing director as there should be a segregation of duties whereby the governance policy setting

and the day-to-day operation shall be separated from each other.

Under the Item 15 of the company regulation, it is stated that one-third of total directors, whereby currently
there are 7 directors, shall be released from the post at the annual general meeting of shareholders. Each
director has a term of 3-4 years. After the term is reached, the Board shall hold a meeting to consider the
person with qualification to be the director in order to propose to the shareholder meeting. The Board can

reelect the director who is released from the post back to be the director.
1.5.2 Sub Committee

The company has established the Audit Committee whereby the term of directors is 2 years. Its
roles and responsibilities have been set clear and stated under the roles and responsibilities of the Audit

Committee under the Section of Management.

The Board has not established the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. The remunerations
set by the Board have been well considered whereby the Board has compared remunerations to those set by
the same industry. Such remunerations shall be approved by the shareholder meeting and the remunerations

of the management shall be in accordance with the principal and policy set by the Board.
1.5.3 Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for managing the company to be in accordance with the law, objectives,
regulations and the resolution passed from the shareholder meeting. The Board shall consider and give an
approval, including develop the vision, mission, strategy and direction of operations, treasury, risk management.
Moreover, the Board is responsible for overseeing the management to efficiently and effectively operate
under the policy set. Furthermore, their responsibilities include protecting the interests of the shareholders

and disclosing the correct and complete information with standard and transparency.

The Board can assign and appoint the director to be the managing director to perform any business
except for those required by the law stating to have the resolution passed from the shareholder meeting.
For any issues whereby the director or the person may have a conflict of interest, such directors shall waive

their right to vote on those issues.
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1.5.4 The Board of Directors Meeting

The Board of Director Meeting shall be held regularly. The Chairman of the Board has encouraged
the executives to cautiously use their judgment and manage their time so that the executives can present
the case and all directors can cautiously discuss the case. As such, the notice of meeting, meeting agenda
and the minute of the last meeting shall be sent to the Board at least 7 days in advance so that the directors
can study and read through the document before the meeting has commenced. At each meeting, the minute
shall be recorded and shall be approved by the Board at the next meeting. In 2013, there were 5 Board of
Director's Meeting whereby the attendance details of each directors are disclosed under the Remuneration

of the Directors and Management.
1.5.5 Self-assessment of the Board

The company has the policy stating that the Board shall re-assess their performance annually so that
the Board can jointly consider the performance and problems in order to use those to improve their perfor-

mance.
1.5.6 Remunerations

The remunerations of the Board are cautiously considered and set by the Board Meeting whereby
these remunerations are compared to those set by the same industry. The proposed remunerations shall
be approved at the shareholder meeting. As for the remunerations of 2013, the directors had the meeting
allowances of THB 10,000 per meeting. The chairman of audit committee had the annual remunerations
of THB 500,000, and the member of audit committee had the annual remunerations of THB 400,000 per
person. For the remunerations of the management, the management shall received the salary and bonus
based on the performance of the company and their individual performance. Details of the remunerations of

the Management shall be disclosed and presented under the Remunerations of Directors and Management.
1.5.7 Development of Directors and the Management

To assure shareholders and investors that directors are knowledgeable in carrying out their duties as
a director in accordance to good corporate governance principles, the company has encouraged the direc-
tors to continuously train with the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD). As for the management, the company has
the policy to develop the management of the company by encouraging them to pursue their further study in
MBA and Mini-MBA, etc.

2. Board Committee

The Company’s board committee comprises 2 committees, the Audit Committee and the Executive Committee,

with details of names and scope of responsibilities as well as authorities presented below.
2.1) The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises 3 members as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Independent Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
3. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee

All of the audit committee above has fully qualifications determined by the Securities and stock Exchange
Act, and has adequate expertise and experience to review creditability of the financial reports. In 2013 the audit
committee convened a total of 5 meetings. Ms.Nitthakarn Changkate, Internal audit Manager, serves as audit
committee secretary
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Scope of duties and authorities of the Audit Committee

The audit committee of the company has the scope of duties and responsibilities to the Board of

Directors on the following matters:

1.
2.

8.

To review the Company's financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate.
To review the Company's internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are suitable
and efficient, to determine an internal audit unit's independence, as well as to approve the appointment,
transfer and dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit.
To review the Company's compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange's
egulations, and the laws relating to the Company's business.
To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the Company's auditor, and to propose
such person's remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management meeting with an auditor at least
once a year.
To consider the related transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure
that they are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange's regulations, and are presented accurately
and comprehensively.
To report the audit committee’s operation to the board of directors at least once a quarter.
To prepare, and to disclose in the Company's annual report, an audit committee's report which must be
signed by the audit committee's chairman and consist of at least the following information:
(a)  An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company's financial report,
(b)  An opinion on the adequacy of the Company's internal control system,
(c)  Anopinion on the compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange's regulations,
or the laws relating to the Company's business,
(d)  An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,
(e) An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests,
(f)  The number of the audit committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each
committee member,
(g) Anopinion or overview comment received by the audit committee from its performance of duties
in accordance with the charter, and
(h)  Other transactions which, according to the audit committee's opinion, should be known to the
shareholders and general investors, subject to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned
by the Company's board of directors; and
To perform any other act as assigned by the Company's board of directors, with the approval of the

audit committee.

2.2) The Executive Committee

In 2013 the Executive Committee convened a total of 70 meetings and as of December 31, 2013 had 3

Directors, as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Executive Chairman
2. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Executive Director
3. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Executive Director

Scope of authorities and responsibilities of the Executive Committee

1.

The Executive Committee is invested with the authority to carry out operations in accordance with
the policies of the Board of Directors, within the framework of the law and the Company Articles of
Association. Exceptions are made for conditions required by law as requiring the mandate of Shareholders’

Meeting resolutions.
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2. The authority to approve loans or other borrowings from financial institutions and/or the issue of financial
debt instruments and/or any other forms of financial promissory notes to general investors, specific investors
and institutional investors. This includes authorization to arrange settlements or payments for the normal
business operations of the Company, such as investment outlays, or for the purchase of land or land
with constructions and other activities. The limit for each transaction is determined at a maximum of 700

million Baht, or an equivalent amount, or as assigned by the Board of Directors

3. Authority to appoint and remove Company officers from designations not above the level of Managing

Director

4. Authority to prepare, propose and determine policies, business direction and strategies for the Company
to the Board of Directors

5. Perform duties related to the general administration of the Company, including the determination of the
organizational structure and management, covering all details pertaining to the selection, training, hiring

and removal of Company employees.

6. Formulate business plans; facilitate administrative activities; approve the annual budget for business
operations and the annual expenditure budgets; carry out operations in accordance with the business
plans and business strategies to complement the policies and business direction presented to the
Board of Directors

7. Perform other duties as assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors.

The delegation of authority to the Executive Committee requires that transactions in which Executive Directors

or other individuals may have a potential conflict of interest or vested interest, or any other form of conflict of interest

with the Company or its subsidiaries, obligate the said Executive Director to refrain from exercising or casting votes

concerning the matter in question. The authorization of transactions with a possible conflict of transaction must be

carried out in compliance with the Announcement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand concerning the guidelines,

method and disclosure of listed company related transactions.

Selection of Directors and Executives

Appointment and removal of Company Directors

1.

In the appointment and removal of Company directors, Company directors are elected by the shareholders’
meeting whereby the appointment of directors must be approved by shareholders’ meeting with no less than
half of the total number of votes cast by shareholders in attendance and entitled to vote at the meeting. The

shareholders are entitled to exercise their rights to vote on an individual basis.

The Shareholders’ Meeting nominates Directors according to the guidelines and method as follows:

(1) Each Shareholder has voting rights of one vote per share

(2) Each Shareholder will have a total number of votes determined as per Item (1) to nominate one
or several persons as Directors. However, the shares may not be divided in favour of a particular
individual

(3) Individuals receiving the highest votes in descending order will be appointed as Directors according
to the number of Directors required, or to be voted in. In the event that there is a tie, but the
appointment of both candidates would exceed the number of Directors required or to be voted

in, the Chairman of the Meeting will cast the deciding vote.

At each Annual Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, a total of 1 in 3 of the number of Directors is required to
vacate their posts. If the number of Directors is not divisible by three, the figure closest to 1 in 3 is to be used.
In the first and second years following the registration of the Company, the Directors to vacate their posts will
be decided by a lottery system. In successive years, the longest serving Directors will be obliged to vacate

their posts first.
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4. In addition to completion of tenure, a Director may be considered to complete their terms due to

(1) Death

(2) Resignation

(3) Lack of qualifications or possession of prohibited qualities as specified by the Public Companies Act
(4) The Shareholders’ Meeting passes a resolution seeking the removal of a Director. A vote of not

less than 3 in 4 of the number of shares present and eligible for voting at the Meeting, representing

at least half of the votes in attendance and eligible to vote at the Meeting, is required

5. Any Director intending to resign must submit their formal resignation to the Company. The resignation becomes

effective upon the date the resignation document reaches the Company.
Nomination of Executive Directors

Executive Directors and management are nominated by the Meetings of the Board of Directors and are not
reviewed by the Nominations Committee, since the Company currently does not have such a committee. Nonetheless,
the Board of Directors considers candidates based on their qualifications, knowledge, capabilities and relevant
working experience. This includes qualifications as specified by Measure 68 of the Public Limited Companies Act
of B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992) and the relevant Announcements of the Securities and Exchange Commission. This is in

the interests of ensuring the Company’s efficient operations.

4) Insider information controls

The Company has a policy forbidding Directors and management from using significant insider information about
the Company that has not yet been disclosed for the benefit of others, including the trading of Company securities. The

measures regarding executives’ use of insider information for personal gain is outlined as follows.

(1)  Management in the various departments is clearly informed of their obligation to report their equity stake in the
Company; this also applies to their spouses and children who are minors. Changes in equity ownership are
likewise required to be reported, in accordance with Measure 59 and penalty Measure 275 of the Securities
and Stock Exchange Act of B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)

(2) Documentation is circulated to ensure that management are informed that Executives with access to signifi-
cant insider information which has the potential to impact changes in the price of the Company’s securities
are advised to refrain from trading in the Company’s shares for a period of 1 month. Such information is
not permitted to be disclosed to other parties prior to the disclosure to the general public of the financial
statements or the information in question. In order to control and monitor compliance in this regard, the
Company has a policy requiring management to report their shareholdings and any subsequent changes in

securities to the Board of Directors, in accordance with Measure 59.

5) Audit fees

The 2013 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders passed a resolution to nominate Ms. Wanraya Buddhisatean
with auditor license no. 4387 or Ms. Chantra Wongsriudomporn with auditor license no. 4996 from S.K. Accountant
Service Co., Ltd. to be the 2013 company’s auditor. All the auditors listed above have no relationship or any interest
with the company / subsidiaries / executives / major shareholders or related to such person in anyway. The audit fees

were determined at 700,000 Baht, Increasing 12,000 Baht from last year fee.

For non-audit item, in the last accounting period the company used the English translation service from this
auditing office which costs 40,000 baht.
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Social and Environmental Responsibilities

The phrase of “Houses Built on Good Intentions” is the main philosophy of all executives and employees of Lalin
Property Public Company Limited who are committed to build a house with full intention, pay attention to the life quality
and create good environment to customers, support motivation of all employees in the organization and nearby
communities, and also return benefits to the society.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is one of the principles that Lalin Property Public Company Limited consistently
focuses on throughout its operation. The Company is aware of the sustainable growth of the organization which requires
visions, capabilities, together with morality and ethics in the operation under the good corporate governance principle

and corporate social responsibility.

Respect of Human Rights and Fair Treatment of Employees

The Company is committed to comply with the labor law and other laws related to employment by focusing on
care and attention to employees. In addition, the Company provides welfares to employees, such as provident fund,
educational scholarship for employees, group health insurance, annual holidays according to rules of the labor law, fair
salary payment, and annual bonus payment, in order to return a favor to employees’ intentions in operations. KPI (Key
Performance Indicator) is applies as the indicator representing the efficiency and effectiveness of performances of the
organization or sections in the organization.

However, the Company establishes the Welfare Committee to give advices and suggestions regarding to welfares,
inspect and audit welfares provided to employees, and provide comments and additional or necessary guidelines
relating to welfares. In addition, the Company also provides the annual employee survey relating to satisfaction on the
working environment, nature of work, executives, communication, and organizational commitment of the employees.
Such survey will be applied as the guideline for further development t and improvement.

Furthermore, Lalin Property also focuses on providing trainings continuously in order to enhance skills, knowledge,
and capabilities in the operation of employees. Annually, the Company will offer opportunities to supervisors and
employees to express their opinions relating to the demand of trainings for self-development and development of
occupational knowledge and abilities.

Regarding to the activities for strengthening good relationship in the organization, the Company organizes the
New Year Party at the end of every year, Annual Sport’s Day, and “Happy Hour” activity after office hours once a month,
in order to enhance happiness of employees in working, relax and reduce stress. These activities will lead to Happy
Organization and also create good relationship between employees, as well as employees and executives, including

support the organizational commitment of employees.

Fair Business Operation

The Company intends to create good confidence for customers, which will cause positive results in long term, and
ignores other benefits possibly affecting the business operation of the Company. The Company will avoid any operation
which may cause conflict of interests. If the conflict of interests is found, the Company will settle it fairly. In addition, the
Company provides the management system which prevents the bribes and corruption. If any corruption is detected,
the Company will rapidly solve that problem.

Customer Responsibility

The Company emphasizes on doing business by constructing qualified and standardized houses. Moreover, the

Company is aware of services which create the best impression to customers with the following practices.

1. Providing complete and fair information to customers and considering benefits of customers, such as, no

exaggerated advertising, providing clear information with simple and easy-to-understand language
2. Developing products and services of the business which respond the social and environmental demand to

customers and have the standard in order to create customers” satisfaction. The Company establishes the
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Quality Control section (QC) for inspecting and controlling the production process or services so that all
products are in accordance with the requirements of the organization, including the corrective action system

which helps detect non-conforming products.
Anti-corruption and performing fair business operation

Listening to a problems and rapidly and willingly resolve problems without bias and mainly considering

benefits of customers

Organizing Activities under Project

The Company greatly pays attention to create good relationship with members under the Lalin Project by building

participation and interaction through any activities, such as New Year Party, Children’s Day, Loy Kratong Day, making

merits on Buddhist Festivals, etc. Additionally, the Company also focuses on the quality of life of all members in the

project by providing the medical checkup, vaccination for dogs, Big Cleaning event, etc.

Developing Community and Society

Strong communities and society with sustainable development are very significant as the supporting factor for the

business operation of the Company. As a result, the Company promotes social activities continuously and participates

in enhancing strength for communities by creating qualified society, reducing or stopping negative impacts on

communities and society, especially impacts arising out of the operation of the Company. In addition, the Company

also supports volunteering activities relating to community and society development.

Conserving Nature and Environment

1.

Fostering employees to save and consume energy valuably, such as turning off lights during lunch break
and all computers after finishing using, adjusting the temperature of air conditioners at the saving-energy
temperature and turning them off after finishing using.

Realizing energy problems and global warming by fostering awareness of employees to help save and
support re-use of resources, such as using recycled paper for photocopying

Communicating to all employees, customers, and associated persons to be aware of the energy saving and
energy consumption with the highest worthwhileness

Using benefits from technologies in order to reduce transportation and energy consumption

Considering environment and impacts on society surrounding the construction sites, providing preventive
measures for dust and safety, noise pollution, managing wastes arising out of the construction, and providing
wastewater treatment before releasing out of the construction sites

Designing houses which help save energy and cause no impact on environment. All housing projects of the
Company are planned, managed, and controlled in terms of all production process. In addition, the Company
designs houses according to the principles of the nature by selecting and using materials which save the
energy and help reduce the global warming, such as, green tinted glasses, which help reduce the intense
and heat of the light, including filter UV and reflect heat, so the heat inside the house reduces and help less
consumption of air conditioners.

Communicating knowledge and information relating to impacts on environment and safety to all employees,

customers, and the public
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Safety Operation

The Company is aware of the life, health, and property safety of employees and customer under the projects by

implementing the following operations;

1. Installing CCTV in the Company for the safety of employees and around the housing projects of the Company

foe the safety of residents in the projects
2. Providing 24-hour security guards who have no criminal records and drug use

3. The Company provides the training of “Firefighting and Evacuation” once a year so that employees
acknowledge the basic preventive measures, fire exit routes, fire extinguishers usage, and safe evacuation

out of the building. This activity is the preparation in case real situations take place.
Activities Dedicated to Society

The Company annually organizes the social activities in order to return benefits to the society. In 2013, the

Company held the following activities;

1. “Lalin gives love to children” Activity at the Pattaya Orphanage Foundation in Chonburi for donating necessary

and useful items, such as, computer, stationery, gardening equipments, cooking equipments, medicines,

sport equipments, and contributions, including providing suppers for children

2. Donation for procuring ventilators
to Thammasat University Hospital in
an occasion of 80th anniversary of
Thammasat University Establishment
which these medical tools will be

beneficial to patients
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Internal Control and Risk Management

In the 1st/2557 board of directors’ meeting held on 21 February 2014, the board of directors approved the audit
committee in line with the assessment form for the sufficiency of the internal control systems for 2013. In summary,
the company has sufficient internal controls covering five areas, namely, internal control, risk assessment, operational
control, information system and data communication, and follow-up systems. The details are as follows:

1. Internal Control

The company has set a goal for business operations that is clear, reasonable and
measureable in order to be used as an operational guideline for employees. The company has stipulated
that executives and personnel perform the duties under their obligation with integrity and moral ethics in
writing. The company has communicated the importance of this matter to all employees for their awareness
in the new personnel orientation. The company’s corporate infrastructure is set for compatibility with the
company’s business operations with business and legal aspects taken into account. The company has also
established an efficient internal control system. Main duties are divided to provide check-and-balance with
an Internal Audit Department reporting directly to the audit directors. A chain of command has been set in
place that is clear and appropriate. Employee roles and duties are set forth in writing so all employees are
aware of the authority, duties and responsibilities under their obligation so they can properly execute duties
at full capacity. Employees are educated and trained with the skills necessary for work operations.

2. Risk Assessment
The company places importance in risk assessment. In board meetings, risks with potential
impact on the company’s business operations are assessed and considered in terms of internal and
external factors by every corporate agency or unit/duty, thereby leading to control, follow-up and
management for any events occurring. In the bi-weekly board of directors’ meetings, each line of work
states problems, barriers and opportunities for corruption and presents the measures taken in line with the
risk management guidelines.

3. Operation Control
The company places clear and strict regulations on operations, procurement and budget
approval authorization in order to prevent corruption. For check-and-balance purposes, duties and
responsibilities are divided into three areas, namely, approval, Information and transaction recording and asset
maintenance. The company develops its information technology to support the business so its operations
are efficient. In addition, policy and operational procedures are regularly reviewed so they are consistently
suitable for the business.

4. Information systems and data communications

The company has arranged sufficient key information available for decision-making and submits the
information to the board of directors within the legally designated period of time. Minutes to the board of
directors’ meetings are recorded in detail and kept available for proper review in terms of directors’ execution
of duty. Documents for accounting records are stored and categorized. The company has communication
channels for communication throughout the entire company via an intranet. Department meetings are held
on a monthly basis. For external communications, the company arranges for the availability of investor
relations as a communicative channel between the company and outside investors and agencies.
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5.

Monitoring/Follow-Up System

The company follows up on business performance to determine achievement of set goals. Meetings
are held with the management once a week. Executive board meetings are held bi-weekly to closely monitor
work performance. Furthermore, board of directors’ meetings are held at least five times a year to consider,
analyze and evaluate whether or not performances meets the set strategies, goals and business plans
and to assure that potential problems are corrected and operation plans are adjusted to suit the changing
situations. In addition, the company also has an Internal Audit Department to perform the duty of auditing
the company’s operations in order to assess and report audit results directly to the Audit Committee. Next,
the Audit Committee reports on performance to the board of directors for awareness in the board meeting on
every occasion. For financial data, independent auditors conduct audits and render opinions. At present,

no errors in internal control on accounting have been found to significantly affect the financial statement.

At present, Chief of internal audit unit is Ms.Nitthakarn Changket. Short biography as follow.

Education

«  Bachelor of Accountancy — Bangkok University (1990 — 1993)

«  Master of Business and Administration (Accountancy) - Ramkhamhaeng University (2006 — 2007)

Working Experience

e Head of Internal Audit Unit — Central Pattana PCL (1999 — 2003)

« Internal Audit Manager — Lalin Property PCL (2004 — Present)

Training Programs (in past 1 year)

*  Seminarin “Going from ‘Good’ to ‘Great’ in IT Governance and Outsourcing” arranged by Stock Exchange

of Thailand and Thailand Internal audit association

The Audit Committee has opinion that Ms.Nitthakarn Changket, Head of Internal Audit Unit of the company, has

adequate expertise and experience to efficiency act in internal auditing function. In addition, Company’s internal audit

unit is independence. The Audit Committee has duty to approve the appointment, transfer, and dismiss of the head of

internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit function.
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Related party transactions

The Company currently does not have any related party transactions. However, if company will do any related
transactions in the future, the company will determine any terms as normal commercial practice at market prices,
which may be compared with prices in transactions occurring with outside parties. The Company will assign the Audit
Committee, the corporate auditors, or independent experts to review the transactions and provide their opinions as to

the suitability of pricing and justification of such items.

The Board of Directors must ensure that any future related party transactions comply with the Securities and Stock
Exchange Act, regulations, announcements, orders or conditions of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Furthermore,
compliance is required with regulations governing the disclosure of related party transactions and the significant

acquisition, or divestiture of securities in the Company or its subsidiaries.

Furthermore, related party transactions for the Company or its subsidiaries which may occur with individuals
having potential conflict of interest, vested interest or future conflict of interest, require the Audit Committee to review and
provide their opinion as to the necessity and suitability of the transaction. In the event that the Audit Committee does
not possess the expertise to consider the particular transaction in question, the Company will assign an independent
expert or the corporate auditors to provide an opinion. The feedback will be used in the decision making of the Board
of Directors’ or Shareholders, as may be the case. The Company will disclose details of related party transactions in

the Notes to the Financial Statements, which have been duly inspected by the corporate auditors.
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Explanation on Operating Performance and

Analysis of Financial Status

In 2013, Lalin Property Public Co., Ltd. had  total realized sales revenue of 2,322.81 million baht, which was an
increase from 2012 in which the realized revenue was 1,720.39 million baht by 35.02%, meaning the Company was able
to exceed the goals set at the beginning of the year for 2,250 million baht, despite the unfavorable economic situation in
2013 due to the impact of many negative internal and external factors such as China’s economic down-turn, fluctuations
in the financial markets caused by capital reflux and continually decreasing consumer and entrepreneur confidence,
including political conflicts on our home front with prolonged protests into 2014. Thailand’s economic growth figures or
GDP in 2013 was only 2.9% whereas many parties estimated the Thai economy to be able to grow by 5 — 6% in early
2013.

The Company was able to manage in line with its goals, partially because of the Company’s more aggressive
business strategies from increasing revenue ratios of high rise projects. In 2013, the Company had ratios of high rise
revenue at approximately 10% of total realized revenue. Moreover, the Company expanded to invest in regional markets
in which the Company launched a total of six projects in upcountry provinces at the end of 2013 with the total project

value of over 5,000 million baht, which is considered a satisfactory market response.

Concerning profitability, the Company remained able to continually manage various costs with better overall profitability
ratios than the industry’s mean value. In 2013, the Company had a gross profit margin of 39.4%, which was higher than
the industry’s mean value at approximately 34.5%. This reflected on good direct cost management whether in terms of
land procurement ability or construction management. With regard to SG&A/Revenues, the Company’s SG%A/Revenues
were 11.7%, a reduction from the previous year’s figure of 13.7%. This was due to the Company’s increase in perceived
revenue to 35%. The Company’s SG&A/Revenue ratio was considered much better than the industry average at
approximately 18.3%, thereby reflecting the Company’s ability to control various management costs. In terms of financial
costs, the Company’s financial cost in 2013 was 38.05 million baht, an increase from 34.43 million baht in 2012. The
cause of this minor increase in financial cost was due to loan increases. In 2013, the Company distributed loan shares
with a three-year period at 630 million baht with a static interest rate of 4.75%. Nevertheless, when the ratio of financial
cost to sales figures was considered, the ratio was found to be reduced from 2.0% to 1.6% in 2013. The Company had

14.81 times the interest coverage ratio.

The Company’s net profit in 2013 was 418.31 million baht, an increase of 55.1% from 269.69 million baht in
2012 as a result of a 35-percent increase in the Company’s realized revenue in addition to the fact that the Company
maintained good ability to manage various costs whether in the form of direct costs or various management costs. And
in 2013, the Company’s juristic person tax was reduced to 20% from 23% in 2012, which contributed to the Company’s
significant net profit growth in 2013. The Company’s net profit margin was 18.0%, an improvement from the previous
year’s percentage of 15.7% and, when compared with the industry average, a mean net profit margin of approximately

12.6%, the Company can be considered to have a better net profit margin that is above the industry average.

According to the Company’s balance sheet of 31 December 2013, the Company had total assets valued at 6,909.70
million baht, an increase from the balance at the end of the previous year of 1,031.88 million baht by approximately
17.56%. The increase came from liabilities (810.55 million baht) and shareholders’ equity (221.33 million baht. Significant
assets with changes comprised the following: 1. Inventory which increased by 1,043.51 million baht to 5,814.36 million
baht because the Company launched seven new projects to support business growth and expansion, including three
condominium projects that commenced construction in 2013 with realized revenue from the first quarter of 2014 onward;
2. Investments in available-for-sale securities, an account where the Company deposits cash in the government bond

fund to earn better returns than depositing the cash with ordinary commercial banks for an increase of 102.56 million
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baht to 182.82 million baht; 3. Land awaiting development dropped by 192.93 million baht to 534.88 million baht from
transfers to inventory accounts with new projects launched. In accounting, when new projects are launched, the entire
plot of land awaiting development and new projects is transferred to inventory accounts. In 2013, 703.74 million baht of

land awaiting development was transferred into inventory accounts according to the Company’s new projects launched.

In terms of liabilities for the end of 2013, the Company had the total liabilities of 2,615.78 million baht divided into
short-term liabilities (583.57 million baht) and long-term liabilities (2,032.21 million baht) with 9.13 million baht in liabilities
from short-term loans and 1,926.73 million baht in liabilities from long-term loans. When compared to the end of 2012,
liabilities from long-term loans were found to have increased by 628.58 million baht because the Company distributed
loan shares with a three-year period at a total value of 630 million baht and a fixed interest rate of 4.75%. In issuing
these loan shares, the Company appointed four allied banks to jointly manage the distribution. The banks consisted of
Thanachat Bank Public Co., Ltd., Krung Sri Ayudhaya Bank Public Co., Ltd., UOB Bank Public Co., Ltd. and CIMB Thai
Public Co., Ltd. The distribution was a proposal to distribute loan shares to institute investors or major investors (Il &
HNW).

The Company’s shareholders’ equity at the end of 2013 was 4,293.92 million baht, an increase from the end of 2012
by 221.33 million baht. The D/E ratio at the end of 2013 was 0.61 times, which was very low compared to the industry
average of approximately 1.47 times. The aforementioned numbers indicate the Company’s ability for potential business
growth in the future, including supportive capabilities in case an economic recession occurs with severity exceeding
expectations. The fact that the Company has low D/E ratios will help the Company to avoid confrontation with problems

concerning liquidity and capital sources.

In 2013, the Company paid dividends to the Company’s shareholders twice: On 17 May 2013 at a price of 0.12
baht per share, or a total of 99.00 million baht (for the Company’s performance in the second half of 2012) and on 13
September 2013 at a price of 0.12 baht per share or a total of 99.00 million baht (for the Company’s performance in
the first half of 2013). The Company is currently proposing that the general shareholders’ meeting of 2014 approve
dividend payments to shareholders for the Company’s performance in the second half of 2013 at a price of 0.125 baht
per share, or a total of 103.125 million baht on 16 May 2014. Dividends were paid for performance in 2013 at 0.245 baht
per share, or a dividend payout ratio of 48.20%. Throughout the past 8-9 years, the Company has paid dividends at the
rate of approximately 40 — 55% of its net profit. Therefore, the Company’s Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 1/2557 on 21
February 2014 had a resolution approving changes in the Company’s policy for dividend payments from “approximately
30% of net profi...... ” to “no less than 30% of net profi...... " in order to be concurrent with the dividend ratio paid by

the Company in the past.
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Statement of the Board of Director’s Responsibilities

to the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial statements of Lalin Public Company Limited, as well as the
financial information presented in the 2013 Annual Report. These financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, using appropriate accounting principles that are applied on a consistent
basis. Furthermore, cautious judgment and the best estimates for financial projections are exercised in the preparation
of the statements. Every care is taken to ensure adequate disclosure of information in the Notes to the Financial

Statements, for the benefit of Shareholders as well as general investors and in the interests of transparency.

The Company’s Board of Directors has implemented an appropriate risk assessment system, as well as a system
of internal controls, to engender confidence in the accuracy, completeness and sufficiency of accounting information
to maintain the Company’s assets. Moreover, this serves as a safeguard against dishonest or other abnormal activities

of a significant nature.

In this regards, the Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee to review the quality of the financial statements,
the internal audit report and including the system for risk management. The recommendations of the Audit Committee

in this regard are presented in the Report of the Audit Committee as shown in the Annual Report.

The Company’s Financial Statements have been duly inspected by the corporate auditors, Ms.Chantra
Wongsri-Udomporn (Certified No. 4996) of S.K. Accountant Services Co., Ltd. As part of the audit process, the Board
of Directors determined the policy guidelines for management to provide adequate supporting information and
documentation, thereby allowing the auditors to conduct the audit and provide their opinions in line with auditing

standards. The auditors’ opinions are shown in the Auditors’ Report section of the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the Company’s overall internal control systems are
of a satisfactory standard and are able to offer reasonable confidence that the annual Financial Statements of Lalin
Property Public Company Limited for the year ended 31 December 2013 are credible and comply with generally

accepted accounting standards, as well as the relevant regulations.

/ C LAl —

(Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong) (Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul)

Chairman Managing Director
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Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of Lalin Property Public Co., Ltd. is composed of Mr. Suwan Tansatid, the Chairman, with
Asst. Prof. Nipat Jitprasong and Mr. Satid Chanchaokun as Audit Committee Directors.

The Audit Committee performed duties in line with its scope of responsibility assigned by the Company’s board
of directors in compliance with the specifications of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. In 2013, the Company held a total
of five meetings. The meeting held discussions with executives, internal auditors and auditors. The Audit Committee

independently rendered opinions and recommendations with significant contents which can be summarized as follows:
Financial Report Reviews

The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly financial statement and the financial statement of 2013 revised and
audited by auditors before presenting the statements for consideration of approval by the Company’s board of directors.
The Audit Committee questioned the auditors and executives regarding compliance with generally accepted accounting
principles, sufficient disclosure of information, including participation in meetings with auditors without the Management
Department in order to independently discuss significant issues in preparing financial statements and disclosing beneficial
data to financial statement users along with acknowledging auditing plans for 2013. The Audit Committee rendered the

opinion that the financial statements are complete, accurate and reliable with sufficient disclosure of relevant information.
Internal Control and Risk Management System Revisions

The Audit Committee adjusted internal control and risk management systems to assess the adequacy, suitability
and effectiveness of internal control and risk management systems in line with internal auditing standards and guidelines
set forth by the Securities and Exchange Commission, including considering internal auditing reports in line with
approved auditing plans, listening to explanations from auditors regarding internal control systems, rendering opinions
and exchanging knowledge and data concerning risks with potential impact on the Company with the Company’s board
of directors on a quarterly basis. The Audit Committee rendered the opinion that the Company has suitable, adequate

and effective internal control systems and risk management.
Revision of Compliance with the Law

The Audit Committee considered revisions of compliance to the laws governing securities and exchange, the
specifications of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and laws related to the Company’s business. The Audit Committee did
not discover any indications that the Company had intentions to neglect and refuse to comply with related specifications

and/or laws.
Internal Auditing Supervision

The Audit Committee supervised internal audits with coverage of missions, scope of operations, duties, responsibili-
ties and independence in order to assure the effectiveness of the work process and sufficiently concise internal control
systems. The Audit Committee meets with the Auditing Division at least once every quarter to know of audit outcomes
and provide recommendations which will have benefits in modifying operations for the Internal Auditing Division and
the Management Department along with considering annual audit plans. The Audit Committee rendered the opinion
that the Company’s internal auditing system is independent, sufficient and effective. Moreover, the Company has made

improvements in auditing quality in terms of both personnel and auditing operations.
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Performance Report

The Audit Committee reports the committee’s performance to the Company’s board of directors on a quarterly
basis. The Audit Committee rendered opinions and recommendations of benefit to the Management Department. The

Management Department made proper adjustments according to those recommendations.
Consideration for Auditors in 2014

The Audit Committee selected, nominated and proposed remuneration for auditors of 2014 by considering perfor-
mance, independence and suitability of wages for account auditing services for presentation to the Company’s board
of directors in order to request approval from the meeting of shareholders. The Audit Committee proposed that SK Ac-

countant Services Co., Ltd. be the Company’s auditor in 2014 with a remuneration of 750,000 baht.

In 2013, the Audit Committee performed all duties as assigned by the Company’s board of directors, fully exer-
cising knowledge and capabilities with sufficient independence and no limitations in receiving data. Overall, the Audit
Committee has rendered the opinion that the company accurately and properly reported financial data and operations
with having suitable and sufficient internal control, internal auditing and risk management systems in compliance with
various laws, specifications and obligations, including the promotion and development of good business governance
with continuity, transparency and reliability in addition to continual improvements in the quality of operating systems for

the benefit of the persons involved and other stakeholders.

(Mr.Suvarn Tansathit)

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED, which com-
prise the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2013, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’'s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in
accordance with Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material mis-
statement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit pro-
cedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of LALIN PROPERTY
PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED as of 31 December 2013, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards.
Other Matter
The financial statements of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED for the year ended 31 December 2012, were

audited by another auditor in the same firm as me who expressed an unmodified opinion as report dated 26 February 2013.

G ol o
(Chantra Wongsri-Udomporn)
Authorized Auditor No. 4996

S.K. Accountant Services Company Limited
Bangkok,
19 February 2014
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2013

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade and Other Account Receivables - Net
Inventories
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Available-for-Sale Investments
Property, Plant and Equipment - Net
Land Held to Development
Other Intangible Assets - Net
Deferred Tax Assets
Other Non-Current Assets
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

11
12

Baht

73,458,542.08
54,498,230.68
5,814,355,401.18

Notes 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Baht

(RESEIE))

76,142,023.33
67,254,085.96
4,770,840,971.35

1 January 2012
Baht
(GESEIEN)

31,621,471.29
41,128,517.46
4,437,325,324.76

5,942,312,173.94

4,914,237,080.64

4,510,075,313.51

182,817,621.10
233,485,797.13
534,882,5671.42
5,372.00
12,748,994.01
3,451,915.73
967,392,271.39

80,261,835.51
143,100,301.16
727,808,647.42
115,5695.90
9,977,183.75
2,323,927.23
963,587,490.97

30,508,671.50
87,328,767.05
471,476,324.42
164,628.29
9,434,665.97
18,147,459.15
617,060,516.38

6,909,704,445.33

5,877,824,571.61

5,127,135,829.89

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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925,000,000.00

925,000,000.00

925,000,000.00

825,000,000.00
499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
2,876,164,226.94
1,041,890.40

825,000,000.00
499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
2,655,857,077.63
20,232.57

825,000,000.00
499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
2,518,063,113.10
4,055.73

4,293,921,644.28

4,072,592,837.14

3,934,782,695.77

6,909,704,445.33

5,877,824,571.61

5,127,135,829.88




LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2013

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings
Trade and Other Account Payables
Current Portion of Long-Term Borrowings
Current Portion of Liabilities under Financial Leased Contract
Accrued Income Taxes
Short-Term Provision of Liablilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-Term Borrowings
Debenture
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Employee Benefit Obligation
Long-Term Provision of Liabilities
Non-Current liabilities
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share Capital
Authorized Share Capital
925,000,000 Ordinary Shares @ Baht 1.00
Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital
825,000,000 Ordinary Shares @ Baht 1.00
Premiums on Ordinary Share
Retained Earnings
Appropriated
Legal Reserve
Unappropriated
Other Components of Equity
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

14
16

15

16
17
12
18
15

19

20

Baht

9,133,933.57
207,286,574.09
64,842.00
40,337,397.56
326,750,305.36

Notes 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Baht

(RESEIE))

17,271,392.71
145,155,514.43
110,000.00
45,204,704.54
201,319,378.67

1 January 2012
Baht
(GESEIEN)

200,482,351.31
101,004,160.55

53,949,755.79
190,494,480.68

583,573,052.58

409,060,990.35

545,930,748.33

500,000,000.00
1,426,729,937.32
260,472.60
27,722,883.46
77,412,941.59
83,513.50

500,500,000.00
797,645,530.39
6,043.50
25,5632,157.62
72,334,163.11
152,849.50

5563,210,000.00
1,738.17
26,377,132.39
66,833,515.22

2,032,209,748.47

1,396,170,744.12

646,422,385.78

2,615,782,801.05

1,805,231,734.47

1,192,353,134.11

925,000,000.00

925,000,000.00

925,000,000.00

825,000,000.00
499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
2,876,164,226.94
1,041,890.40

825,000,000.00
499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
2,655,857,077.63
20,232.57

825,000,000.00
499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
2,5618,063,113.10
4,055.73

4,293,921,644.28

4,072,592,837.14

3,934,782,695.77

6,909,704,445.33

5,877,824,571.61

5,127,135,829.88

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2,322,805,510.00
(1,407,413,064.21)

1,720,394,812.00
(1,038,001,068.12)

915,392,445.79
10,649,372.85
(89,811,549.00)
(145,083,432.35)
(127,605,036.15)

682,393,743.88
9,898,456.81
(66,553,988.00)
(119,062,266.18)
(118,385,785.22)

(38,048,347.97) (34,431,165.83)
525,493,453.17 353,858,995.46
23 (107,186,303.86) (84,169,046.93)

418,307,149.31

269,689,948.53

1,021,657.83

16,176.84

1,021,657.83

16,176.84

419,328,807.14

269,706,125.37

0.51

0.33



LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31, 2013

Notes 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Baht Baht
(RESEIE))
Revenue from Sale 2,322,805,510.00 1,720,394,812.00
Cost of Sales (1,407,413,064.21)  (1,038,001,068.12)
Gross Profit 915,392,445.79 682,393,743.88
Other Incomes 10,649,372.85 9,898,456.81
Specific Business Tax and Transfer Fee (89,811,549.00) (66,553,988.00)
Selling Expenses (145,083,432.35) (119,062,266.18)
Administrative Expenses (127,605,036.15) (118,385,785.22)
Finance Costs (38,048,347.97) (34,431,165.83)
Profit Before Income Tax 525,493,453.17 353,858,995.46
Income Tax Expense (Revenue) 23 (107,186,303.86) (84,169,046.93)
Profit for the year 418,307,149.31 269,689,948.53

Other Comprehensive Income (Expense) - Net of Income Tax

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Available-for-Sale Investments 1,021,657.83 16,176.84
Other Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the year - Net of Income Tax 1,021,657.83 16,176.84
Total Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the year 419,328,807.14 269,706,125.37
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (BAHT) 0.51 0.33

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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353,858,995.46
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39,886,478.11
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39,411,788.91

16,325,545.88

516,196,513.93

461,801,811.84



LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2013

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Income Tax

Adjustment to Reconcile Profit Before Income Tax to Cash Provided
(Paid) from Operating

Doubtful Debts - Trade Receiveable (Reverse)
Depreciation
Amortization of Intangible Assets
(Gain) Loss on Sale of Available-for-Sale Investments
(Gain) Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Written-off for Fixed Assets
Employee Benefit Expenses
Actuarial Gain
Interest Revenue
Interest Expenses
Profit from Operating Activities before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets
Trade and Other Account Receivables
Inventories
Other Non-Current Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Trade and Other Account Payables
Other Non-Current Liabilities

Cash Received (Paid) form Operating Activities

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

31 December 2013

15,890,434.43
110,223.90
(3,279,698.66)
1,237,626.97
3,459,406.79
(1,268,680.95)
(79,401.18)

38,048,347.97

31 December 2012

525,493,453.17

353,858,995.46

(43,194.00)
14,365,230.79
49,032.39
(1,083,318.55)
(1,874,994.00)
288,051.71
3,440,090.93
(4,285,065.70)
(78,840.75)

34,431,165.83

579,611,712.44

1,846,551.55

(118,437,702.63)

53,221,110.57

(45,158.00)

399,067,154.11

(32,391,587.09)
39,886,478.11
(497,568.08)

39,411,788.91

16,325,5645.88

516,196,513.93

461,801,811.84
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79,401.18
(9,219,826.87)

(114,825,421.10)
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umn

78,840.75
(18,360,608.31)

(87,147,403.37)

392,230,667.14

356,372,640.91

(1,089,000,000.00)
991,000,000.00
(106,213,557.37)
(70,630,000.00)

(510,812,147.00)

(939,000,000.00)
890,350,636.70
(70,245,704.61)

1,875,000.00

(594,732,209.00)

(785,655,704.37)

(711,752,276.91)

(108,137,459.14)
(69,336.00)
150,000,000.00
(50,000,000.00)
(500,000.00)
630,000,000.00
(2,113,250.00)
(30,527,230.38)

(197,911,168.50)

11,789,041.40
(26,268.50)
539,000,000.00
(734,000,000.00)
80,000,000.00
(132,600,000.00)
800,000,000.00
(2,675,000.00)
(29,691,600.86)

(131,895,984.00)

390,741,555.98

399,900,188.04

(2,683,481.25)

76,142,023.33

44,520,552.04

31,621,471.29

73,458,542.08

76,142,023.33




LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2013

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES(CONTINUE)

Received from Interest Revenue

Paid for Interest Expenses Recorded as Cost of Inventories

Paid for Income Tax Expenses and Withholding Income Taxes
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Payment for Purchase of Available-for-Sale Investments

Cash Received from Sale of Available-for-Sale Investments

Cash Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets

Cash Received from Disposal of Fixed Assets

Cash Payment for for Land Deposit

Cash Payment for Purchase of Land Held to Development
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (Decrease) in Overdrafts

Cash Payment for Liabilities under Finance Lease Agreements

Cash Received from Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions

Cash Payment for Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions

Cash Received from Long-Term Borrowings

Cash Payment for Long-Term Borrowings

Cash Received from Sale of Debenture

Cash Payment for Debenture Issued Expenses

Cash Payment for Interest Expenses

Cash Payment for Dividends
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCREASE (DECREASE)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

‘ 31 December 2013

79,401.18
(9,219,826.87)

(114,825,421.10)

31 December 2012

78,840.75
(18,360,608.31)

(87,147,403.37)

392,230,667.14

356,372,640.91

(1,089,000,000.00)
991,000,000.00
(106,213,557.37)
(70,630,000.00)

(510,812,147.00)

(939,000,000.00)
890,350,636.70
(70,245,704.61)

1,875,000.00

(594,732,209.00)

(785,655,704.37)

(711,752,276.91)

(108,137,459.14)
(69,336.00)
150,000,000.00
(50,000,000.00)
(500,000.00)
630,000,000.00
(2,113,250.00)
(30,527,230.38)

(197,911,168.50)

11,789,041.40
(26,268.50)
539,000,000.00
(734,000,000.00)
80,000,000.00
(132,600,000.00)
800,000,000.00
(2,675,000.00)
(29,691,600.86)

(131,895,984.00)

390,741,555.98

399,900,188.04

(2,683,481.25)

76,142,023.33

44,520,552.04

31,621,471.29

73,458,542.08

76,142,023.33
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Notes To Financial Statements

As of December 31, 2013

1. General Information

The Company was registered under the Civil and Commercial Code as a corporate entity on 8 November 1988,
registration number 8781/2531 and convert to The Public Company Limited held on 3 September 2002, new registration
number 0107545000233. It is registered office located at 222/2 Srinakharin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi, Bangkok, Thailand.
Its principal activity is property development for sales.

2. Basis of Preparation

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards of Thailand including
related interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions, applicable rules

and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

2.2 The financial statements were presented in compliance with the notifiaction of Department of Business Development
regarding “Brief particulars must be contained in financial statements B.E. 2554” dated on 28 September 2011,

notified according to Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

2.3 Inorderto prepare the financial statements to comply with financial reporting standards, the Company’s management
had to make some estimates and suppositions which may have an effect on the amount shown for revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and also on the disclosures concerning assets and contingent liabilities, therefore

the actual result may differ from the estimated amount.
2.4 The financial report in Thai language is the official statutory financial report of the Company. The financial report in
English language has been translated from the Thai language financial report.
3. The Adoption of New Accounting Policies
The Company adopted the new accounting standards, financial reporting standards, interpretations accounting

standards and accounting guidance, which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

TAS 12 Income Taxes

Accounting standard above which is effective for financial statements are as follow:

As Previously Reported | Adjustments Restated

Statement of Financial Position As at January 1, 2012

Deferred Tax Assets - 9,434,665.97 9,434,665.97
Deferred Tax Liabilities - 1,738.17 1,738.17
Unappropriated Retained Earnings 2,508,628,447.13 9,434,665.97 2,518,063,113.10
Other Components of Equity 5,793.91 (1,738.17) 4,055.74

Statement of Financial Position As at 31 December 2012

Deferred Tax Assets - 9,977,183.75 9,977,183.75
Deferred Tax Liabilities - 6,043.50 6,043.50
Unappropriated Retained Earnings 2,645,879,893.88 9,977,183.75 2,655,857,077.63
Other Components of Equity 26,276.07 (6,043.50) 20,232.57
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Notes To Financial Statements

As Previously Reported | Adjustments Restated

Statement of Comprehensive Income For

the year ended 31 December 2012

Income Tax Expense ( Revenue) 84,711,564.71 (542,517.78)  84,169,046.93

Other Comprehensive Income for the year — Net of Income Tax
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Available-for-Sale Investments 20,482.16 (4,305.32) 16,176.84

Basic Earning Per Share (Baht) 0.33 - 0.33

4. New Financial Reporting Standards Not Yet Effective

New accounting standards, financial reporting standards, interpretations accounting standards, interpretations
financial reporting standards and accounting guidance, which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

1 January 2014 and 2016, that the Company has not adopted, are as follow:

Effective on or after 1 January 2014

TAS 1 (revised 2012)

TAS 7 (revised 2012)

TAS 12 (revised 2012)
TAS 17 (revised 2012)
TAS 18 (revised 2012)
TAS 19 (revised 2012)
TAS 21 (revised 2012)
TAS 24 (revised 2012)
TAS 28 (revised 2012)
TAS 31 (revised 2012)
TAS 34 (revised 2012)
TAS 36 (revised 2012)
TAS 38 (revised 2012)
TFRS 2 (revised 2012)
TFRS 3 (revised 2012)
TFRS 5 (revised 2012)
TFRS 8 (revised 2012)

TFRIC 1
TFRIC 4

TFRIC 5

TFRIC 7

TFRIC 10
TFRIC 12
TFRIC 13
TFRIC 17

Presentation of Financial Statements

Cash Flow Statement

Income Taxes

Lease

Revenue

Employee Benefits

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Disclosure of information about a person and related parties.

Investments in associates

Interests in Joint Ventures

Interim Financial Statements

Impairment of Assets

Intangible assets

Of changes in equity

Business Combinations

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

Operating Segments

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar
Liabilities

Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration

and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

Applying the Restatement Approach under TAS 29 Financial

Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
Service Concession Arrangement
Customer Loyalty Programs

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
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Notes To Financial Statements

TFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
TSIC 10 Government Assistance - No Specific with the operations
TSIC 15 Operating Leases — Incentives

Income Taxes - benefits from assets that are not depreciated
TSIC 21 at revalued

Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its
TSIC 25 Shareholders

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in the Legal Form

TSIC 27 of a Lease

TSIC 29 Disclosure - Service Concession Arrangement

TSIC 31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services
TSIC 32 Intangible Assets — Web Site Costs

Effective on or after 1 January 2016

TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

The management of the Company believes that above financial reporting standards will not have any impact on the

financial statements when they are applied.

5.1

5.2

53

54

5.5

5.6

Significant Accounting Policy

Measurements bases used in the Preparation of Financial Statements

Measurement bases used in the preparation of financial statements are historical cost measurement basis and
combination of variety measurement bases used. Some assets and liabilities that use other measurement bases

have been disclosed the measurement bases used in the particular accounting policies.
Financial Instruments

Financial assets were shown in the statement of financial position include cash and cash at banks, trade and
other receivables. Financial liabilities were shown in the statement of financial position include trade and other pay-
ables and borrowings which the accounting policies on recognition and measurement of these items are disclosed

in the respective accounting policies.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes bank deposit in type of saving accounts, current accounts and 3 months
fixed accounts without guarantee obligation.
Trade and Other Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable and other accounts receivable are stated at the net realizable value. Allowance for doubtful
accounts is provided for the estimated collection losses that may incur in collection of receivable.
Inventories

Inventories to perform in accordance with cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Inventory is composed
of land, land development fee, various public utility, construction fee and related loan interest.
Available-for-Sale Investments

Itis investment units in marketable security which the Company regards as available for sale securities reflected
according to fair value. The fair value of investment units is the price announced from the fund as of the statements
of inancial position. The Company recognized the change of value as separate transactions in the caption of share-
holders’ equity in statements of financial position and will be recorded in the statements of comprehensive income

when the Company disposed such investment or the value of investment impairment.
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Notes To Financial Statements

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

Property, Plant and Equipment

Land are recorded at cost on date the transaction occur, Plant and equipment are recorded at cost on date the
transaction occur after deduction of accumulated depreciation and depreciations are calculated on a straight-line
method based on their approximate useful-life as follows:

Land Improvements 20 Years
Building 20 Years
Building-Clubhouses and Swimming Pool 5 Years
Office Equipment 3 And 5 Years
Office Furniture 5 Years
Vehicles 5And 10 Years

For central utility, clubhouses building, garden and children playing yard which were built before the Land
Allotment Act B.E. 2543 was enforceable. The Company will record as part of property, plant and equipment. On
behalf of central utility, clubhouses building, garden and children playing yard which were built after the Land Allot-
ment Act B.E. 2543 was enforceable and the company intended to was as public service, the Company will record
as part of inventory and will write off as cost of goods sold in proportion to selling area of each project.

Repair and maintenance is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income during the period that it
is incurred. Cost of significant improvement should be recognized as a part of carrying amount of assets when it is
probable that the Company will obtain the future economic benefits from that transaction and able to measure the
cost of that transaction reliably. Cost of improvement should be depreciated by the basis of estimated useful life.
Repair and maintenance expenses are recognized as expenses during the period that they are incurred.

Gain or loss from disposal of property, plant and equipment is computed from discrepancy between net cash
received and book value and recognized as other revenue or other expense in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Intangible Assets and Amortization
Computer software

Acquired computer software license are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), Amortization in accordance with the straight line method pursuant to the useful life for the
period of 5 years.

Land held to development

Land held to development are recorded at cost on date the transaction occur after deduction of allowance for
Impairment (if any).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production or development of each project
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. The Company
will record to deferred interest and present as a part of inventories of each project. The Company will cease the
record when the project is complete or sold or faced with problem of delay while the proceeding of further develop-
ment incurs. For the interest incurred from loan to acquire land pending for development but not yet developed. The
Company will record such interest expense as expense in the statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated of asset or
its cash-generating unit to which the asset is included in the recognition of an impairment loss when the recoverable
amount less than the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit.

Impairment loss is recognized as expenses in profit or loss immediately.

Calculation of Recoverable Amount

. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s fair value less cost to sell of asset or the cash- gen-

erating unit and its value in use.

. In assessing value in use of an asset by estimating the present value of future cash flows generated by

the asset, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate which reflects current market assessments of the time

value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
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Notes To Financial Statements

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

. The asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

. The loss on impairment of assets recognized in the prior period will be reversed if the estimation for indicated
net realizable value changes since the last impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of the asset
not exceed just to be the carrying amount that would have been (net of depreciation or amortization), if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

. Reversals of impairment loss will be recognized as income in profit or loss.

Employees Benefit

Short-term Employee Benefits

«  The Company is recognized salary, wage, bonus and social security fund are expense on date the transaction occur.

Long-term Employee Benefits

»  The Company provides for post employment benefits to or retirement indemnity employees under the labor laws
applicable in Thailand. The Company has recorded the liabilities in respect of employee benefits which are the
present value of the defined benefit obligations calculated by Management of the Company in accordance with
the actuarial technique. The present value of the defined benefit obligations are determined by discounting es-
timated future cash flows using yields on the government bonds which have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of related liability. The estimated future cash flows shall reflect employee salaries, turnover rate, mortality,
length of service and other. The Company recorded provision of employee benefit is non-current liabilities. The
costs associated with providing these benefits are charged to the statements of comprehensive income so as

to spread the cost over the employment period during which the entitlement to benefits is earned.
Provision of Liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized

as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
Leases

. The Company is the lessee

Long term leases which substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated to the principal and to the finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The outstanding rental obligations less
finance charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease period. The assets acquired under finance leases while depreciation is carried throughout the
useful life of leased asset. However, if there is uncertainty in the right of ownership when the contract is terminated,
depreciation is carried according to useful life of leased assets or life of leased contract whichever the period is
lower.

Long-term leases not transferring a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operation leases (net of any incentives received from the lesser)
are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made

to the lesser by way of penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.
Recognition of Revenues

The Company are recognized as revenue from sales of land and houses and condominium when the ownership
is respectively transferred and all payments have been received from the buyers.
Recognition of Cost

The Company are recognized cost of land and houses and condominium, the Company allocates cost of the
entire development anticipated to incur of each project (considering actual cost) to land plus house add in accordance
with selling area of each project and recognized as cost of goods sold in percentage of sold area of each project.
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Notes To Financial Statements

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss
except to the extent that related to items recognized in other comprehensive income or recognized directly in equity

which will recognize in other comprehensive income or recognized directly in equity as same as that items.
Current Tax

Current tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, based
on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation, using the tax rates enacted at the end of reporting

period.
Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted at the end of reporting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that the related tax benefit will
be realized.

Basic Earnings per Share

Primary earnings (Loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit (loss) by the weighted average

number of issued and paid up ordinary shares.
Did not calculate the fully diluted earnings (Loss) per share since it has no ordinary share equivalents.
Appropriation of Retained Earnings

The appropriation of retained earnings is attributable to the Public Company Act 2535 (1992). The Company

will appropriate retained earnings when it is approved at the shareholders’ meeting.
Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

In order to prepare the financial statements to comply with financial reporting standards, the Company’s man-
agement had to make some judgment and estimates which may have an effect on the amount shown in financial
statements and notes to financial statements, therefore the actual result may differ from the estimated amount. Sig-

nificant estimates and provisions are as follows:
Lease

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the management is
required to use judgment regarding whether significant risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset have been

transferred, taking into consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts —Trade Receivables

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgment and estimates based
upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic

condition.
Project Development Costs Estimation

In calculating cost of land and houses sold and residential condominium units, the Company and its subsid-
iaries have to estimate all project development costs, comprising land and land improvement costs, design and
construction costs, public utility costs, borrowing costs and other related costs. The management estimates these
costs based on their business experience and revisit the estimations on a periodical basis or when the actual costs

incurred significantly vary from the estimated costs.
Impairment of Equity Investments

The Company treat investments for sale and other investments as impaired when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The

determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment of the management.
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Notes To Financial Statements

Property, Plant and Equipment, Land Held to Development and Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the useful
lives and residual values of the Company’s plant and equipment and to review estimate useful lives and residual
values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment and Land held to develop-
ment for impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses in the period when it is determined that their
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues
and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.

Intangible Assets and Amortization

Intangible assets are systematically amortized over their estimated useful lives, and are subject to impairment

if there is an indication they may be impaired.
Post-Employment Benefits under Defined Benefit Plan

The obligation under defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuations. Inherent within these
calculations are assumptions as to discount rates, future salary increases and other demographic factors. In determin-
ing the appropriate discount rate, management selects an interest rate that reflects the current economic situation.

Actual post-retirement costs may ultimately differ from these estimates.
Estimate Accrued for Maintain the Ultilities of Project

The Company estimate the compensation for Housing Estate Juristic Persons using the rate specified by the

regulator and the budgeted public utilities costs as a basis for the calculation.
Litigations
The Company have contingent liabilities as a result of litigations. The management have used judgment to as-

sess of the results of the litigation and provision for the related liabilities has been recorded as at the end of reporting

period. However, actual results could differ from the estimates.

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Consist of:

As at As at

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Cash 2,976,043.77 2,289,666.41
Current Deposit Accounts 61,659.06 61,659.06
Saving Deposit Accounts 6,196,794.25 142,198.86
Cheque on hand 64,224,045.00 73,648,499.00

Total 73,458,542.08 76,142,023.33

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the whole amount of cheque on hand were cashier cheque which after the

financial report date it is able to draw the money in full amount.
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Notes To Financial Statements

7. Trade and Other Account Receivables — Net

Consist of:

As at As at
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Trade Account Receivables 2,531,335.00 2,361,335.00
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts (2,331,335.00) (2,331,335.00)
Trade Account Receivables — Net 200,000.00 30,000.00

Other Account Receivables

Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Other Account Receivables — Net
Total

59,820,098.85
(5,521,868.17)
54,298,230.68

72,745,954.13
(5,521,868.17)
67,224,085.96

54,498,230.68

67,254,085.96

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, aging of trade account receivables are as follows:

As at

31 December 2013

As at

31 December 2012

Within Credit term - 10,000.00
Over due 1- 3 months - 20,000.00
Over due 3 - 12 months - 53,256.00
Over due more than 12 months 2,531,335.00 2,278,079.00

Total 2,5631,335.00 2,361,335.00
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts (2,331,335.00) (2,331,335.00)

Net 200,000.00 30,000.00

Other account receivables as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, consist of:

31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Prepaid Expenses 23,972,626.64 36,183,426.72
Advance Payment 16,322,863.53 24,165,463.85
Withholding Tax 5,507,055.93 5,507,055.93
Advance Payment for Goods 13,161,440.10 4,746,861.28
Others 856,112.65 2,143,146.35
Total 59,820,098.85 72,745,954.13

Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts (5,521,868.17) (5,521,868.17)
Net 54,298,230.68 67,224,085.96

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, allowance for doubtful debts has movement as follows:

Beginning Balance

Add Increase during the period

Less Refund Doubtful Accounts during the period

Ending Balance

For the years

ended

31 December 2013

(7,853,203.17)

For the years

ended

31 December 2012

(7,896,397.17)
(54,828.00)
98,022.00

(7,853,203.17)

(7,853,203.17)
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Notes To Financial Statements

8.

Inventories — Net

Consist of:

Demonstration for Sale
Land and House
Work-in — Development

Land

Construction

Finance Costs

Deferred Land Development

Deferred Utilities

Work in process — Furniture
Total

149,746,894.31
249,085,400.38

1,683,768,959.65
1,659,929,198.38
90,068,771.82
487,157,109.18
1,411,367,270.28
83,231,797.18

As at As at
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

158,453,784.83
260,804,776.73

1,335,074,868.79
1,356,496,779.64
57,612,107.80
403,897,798.66
1,135,259,241.41
63,241,613.49

5,814,355,401.18

4,770,840,971.35

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company had mortgaged land and construction, the carrying amount in
amount of Baht 2,276.92 million and in amount of Baht 1,763.13 million respectively, as collateral against credit from financial

institution as in Note 10.

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company has capitalized the borrowing costs as develop-
ment in progress in amount of Baht 9.12 million and in amount of Baht 18.36 million respectively, which it is the borrowing

costs that are incurred from the loans which were borrowed for the project development.

Available-for-Sale Investments

Consist of:

Bualuang Thanatavee Open Fund — Cost
Add Unrealized Gain on Remeasuring

Bualuang Thanatavee Open Fund - Fair Value

As at
31 December 2013

181,5615,258.10
1,302,363.00

As at

31 December 2012

80,235,559.44
26,276.07

182,817,621.10

80,261,835.51

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, available-for-sale investments has movement as follows:

Beginning Fair Value
Purchase during the period
Sales during the period
Changes in Fair Value

Ending Fair Value

For the years
ended

31 December 2013

80,261,835.51
1,089,000,000.00
(987,720,301.34)
1,276,086.93

For the years
ended

31 December 2012

30,508,671.50
939,000,000.00
(889,267,318.15)
20,482.16

182,817,621.10

80,261,835.51
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Notes To Financial Statements

11.

12.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company had mortgaged land and building of head office, the carrying
amount in amount of Baht 41.33 million and in amount of Baht 42.13 million respectively, as collateral against credit from

financial institution as in Note 13.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company has assets which fully depreciated but still in use, costing in
amount of Baht 105.80 million and in amount of Baht 76.07 million respectively. The carrying amounts are in amount of
Baht 1,817.76 and in amount of Baht 1,579.96 respectively.

Other Intangible Assets — Net

Consist of:

Computer Software

Baht

As at 31 December 2011

Costs 275,762.54
Less Accumulated Amortization (111,134.25)
Book value 164,628.29

Transactions during the year ended 31 December 2011

Purchase -
Amortization for the year (49,032.39)
Ending Book value 115,595.90

As at 31 December 2012

Costs 275,762.54
Less Accumulated Amortization (160,166.64)
Ending Book value 115,595.90

Transactions during the year ended 31 December 2013

Amortization for the year (110,223.90)

Ending Book value 5,372.00

As at 31 December 2013

Costs 275,762.54
Less Accumulated Amortization (270,390.54)
Ending Book value 5,372.00

Deferred Tax Assets/Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred taxes are calculated in full on temporary differences, using the liability method and applying a principal
tax rate of 23% for 2012 and 20% for 2013 onwards. The deferred taxes related to the temporary differences between the

carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities of the Company are summarized as follows:
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Notes To Financial Statements

13.

14.

Deferred Tax Assets
Inventories
Deferred Revenues
Employee Benefit Obligation
Total
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Gain on Remeasuring of Available- for-Sale

Investments
Total
Net

Credit Facility and Guarantee

As at
31 December

2012

in Profit (Loss)

for the Period

in the Other

Comprehensive
Income (Expense)

31 December
2013

19,046.44 (2,484.32) - 16,562.12
4,085,741.06 3,102,114.14 - 7,187,855.20
5,872,396.25 (327,819.56) - 5,5644,576.69
9,977,183.75 2,771,810.26 - 12,748,994.01

(6,043.50) - (254,429.10) (260,472.60)

(6,043.50) - (254,429.10) (260,472.60)
9,971,140.25 2,771,810.26 (254,429.10) 12,488,521.41

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has credits in letter of guarantee in amount of Baht 378.00 million, credits in

form of the promissory note in amount of Baht 524.20 million, credits in form of overdrafts in amount of Baht 85.00 million

and credits in long-term borrowings in amount of Baht 1,109.33 million, the Company had mortgaged land and construction

as in Note 8 and Note 10 as collateral.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company has credits in letter of guarantee in amount of Baht 275.00 million, credits in

form of the promissory note in amount of Baht 131.60 million, credits in form of overdrafts in amount of Baht 85.00 million

and credits in long-term borrowings in amount of Baht 1,215.36 million, the Company had mortgaged land and construction

as in Note 8 and Note 10 as collateral.

Trade and Other Account Payables

Consist of:

Trade Account Payables
Other Account Payables
Total

31

As at
December 2013

52,574,317.72

154,712,256.37

As at

31 December 2012

37,953,805.34

107,201,709.09

207,286,574.09

145,155,514.43

Other account payables as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 consist of:

Accrued Expenses
Accrued Interest Expenses
Retention Payable
Deferred Revenue
Cheque Payable
Dividend Payable
Others

Total

31

As at
December 2013

58,712,305.85
12,401,641.46
27,905,269.08
37,700,060.00
14,274,203.31
238,333.92
3,480,442.75

As at

31 December 2012

54,985,723.07
4,880,523.87
17,577,702.73
18,726,900.00
6,850,014.91
149,502.42
4,031,342.09

154,712,256.37

107,201,709.09
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Notes To Financial Statements

15. Provision of Liabilities
Consist of:
As at As at
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
Short-Term Provision for Construction Cost of Project Utilities 326,750,305.36 201,319,378.67
Long-Term Provision for Maintenance of Project Utilities 77,412,941.59 72,334,163.11
Total 404,163,246.95 273,653,541.78
Long-term provision for maintenance of project utilities is provision for guarantee the maintenance of project utilities
according to Land Allocation Act B.E. 2543 in the rate of 7% from estimated construction cost of project utilities which
the Company will settle such provision to Housing Juristic Person to spend in the maintenance of project utilities when the
Housing Juristic Person was established according to Land Allocation Act B.E. 2543.
16. Long-Term Borrowings

Consist of:

As at As at
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Long-Term Borrowings 500,000,000.00 500,610,000.00
Less Current Portion - (110,000.00)
Non-Current Portion 500,000,000.00 500,500,000.00

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, long-term borrowings have movement as follows:

For the years ended | For the years ended

31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Beginning Balance 500,500,000.00 563,210,000.00
Add Increase during the period - 80,000,000.00
Less Repayment during the period (500,000.00) (132,600,000.00)
Ending Balance 500,000,000.00 500,610,000.00

As at 31 December 2012, long-term borrowings partly in amount of Baht 0.61 million was borrowings for land acquisition
which the whole amount was borrowings from two financial institutions with the term of principal repayment when there is
any redemption of mortgaged collateral of land and construction at the rate of Baht 0.70 — 1.10 million per unit and Baht
0.55 — 1.15 million per unit respectively. It is determined to complete the repayment within 36 months, carried the interest

rate at the rate of MLR with discount in the rate of 1.00 — 1.25% per annum equally for both years.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, long-term borrowings partly in amount of Baht 500.00 million equally for both
years, was borrowings for working capital in project development which the whole amount was borrowings from a financial
institution with the term of principal repayment due on 36 months since the contract signing date (17 January 2008). The
interest should be paid on every month end at constant rate in the rate of 5.60% per annum. However, on 22
March 2010, the Company had requested the extension for repayment in amount of Baht 300.00 million and in amount of
Baht 200.00 million to 17 January 2013 and 30 November 2013 respectively, and on 24 October 2012, the Company had
requested the extension for repayment in amount of Baht 300.00 million and in amount of Baht 200.00 million to 17 January
2015 and 30 November 2015 respectively.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, long-term borrowings had mortgaged land and construction as in Note 8 and

Note 10 as collateral.
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Notes To Financial Statements

17.

18.

Debenture

Consist of:

As at As at
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2012
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 2/2012
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2013

300,000,000.00
500,000,000.00
630,000,000.00

300,000,000.00
500,000,000.00

Total 1,430,000,000.00 800,000,000.00
Less Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses (3,270,062.68) (2,354,469.61)
Net 1,426,729,937.32 797.645,530.39

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, Debenture has movement as follows:

For the years ended

For the years ended

31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Beginning Balance 797,645,530.39 -

Add Issued Debentures 630,000,000.00 800,000,000.00

915,593.07 320,530.39

(2,675,000.00)
797,645,530.39

Amortization of Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses

(1,831,186.14)
1.426,729.937.32

Less Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses in the period

Ending Balance

For the period ended 31 December 2012 The Company had issued and offered the debentures in accordance with

the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders held on 25 April 2012, which are as follows:

1) Asat 13 July 2012, the Company had issued and offered 300,000 units of non-subordinate fund and unsecured

debentures at face value Baht 1,000 per unit totaling in amount of Baht 300.00 million. The debentures ma-

ture on 15 July 2015 and carried the interest rate in the rate of 5.25% per annum throughout the term of the
debentures with quarter-annually payment.

2)  As at 13 September 2012, the Company had issued and offered 500,000 units of non-subordinate fund
and unsecured debentures at face value Baht 1,000 per unit totaling in amount of Baht 500.00 million. The
debentures mature on 13 September 2015 and carried the interest rate in the rate of 5.30% per annum throughout
the term of the debentures with quarter-annually payment.

3)  As at 16 July 2013, the Company had issued and offered 630,000 units of non-subordinate fund and
unsecured debentures at face value Baht 1,000 per unit totaling in amount of Baht 630.00 million. The debentures
mature on 26 July 2016 and carried the interest rate in the rate of 4.75% per annum throughout the term of the

debentures with quarter-annually payment.

Employee Benefit Obligation

Employee benefit obligation are as follows :

For the years ended | For the years ended

31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Present Value of the Obligation As at 1 January 25,532,157.62

Current Service Cost 2,644,426.77
Interest Expenses 1,010,839.91
Transfer Out in the period (1,268,680.96)
Recognized Actuarial (Gain) Loss (195,859.88)

26,377,132.39
2,512,224.13
927,866.80

(4,285,065.70)

Present Value of the Obligation As at 31 December 27,722,883.46

25,632,157.62
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Notes To Financial Statements

19.

20.

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the items which are included in the profit or loss consist of:

For the years ended | For the years ended

31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Current Service Cost and Interest Expenses 3,655,266.68 3,440,090.93
Transfer Out in the period (195,859.88) -
Actuarial (Gain) Loss (1,268,680.96) (4,285,065,70)

Total 2,190,725.84 844,974.77

The above expenses which recognized in the profit or loss are included in the items as follows:

Expenses are included in income statements

Other Revenue (1,464,540.84) -
Administrative Expenses 3,655,266.68 (844,974.77)
Total 2,190,725.84 (844,974.77)

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuation were as follows:

Discount rate 4.20 % per annum
Salary increase rate 5% per annum
Employee turnover rate 5-13 % perannum
Retirement age 55 years old and 60 years old
Share Capital
Consist of:

For the year ended 31 December 2013 For the year ended 31 December 2012

Authorized Share Capital

Beginning Ordinary Shares 1 925,000,000 925,000,000.00 1 925,000,000 925,000,000.00

Ending Ordinary Shares 1 925,000,000 925,000,000.00 1 925,000,000 925,000,000.00

P o Y
NUNDBNLATTITELAN

Uan ”ﬂﬁumm 1 825,000,000 825,000,000.00 1 825,000,000 825,000,000.00

sSoe

°

wadnlaneam 1 825,000,000 825,000,000.00 1 825,000,000 825,000,000.00

5o

Legal Reserve

Under the provisions of the Limited Public Company Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to appropriate at least
5% of its annual net income after deduction of any deficit brought forward as a legal reserve until the reserve reaches 10%

of the authorized capital.
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Notes To Financial Statements

21.

22.

23.

Dividends Payment
For the years ended 31 December 2013

In accordance with the Minute of the Annual General of Meeting Shareholders for 2013, held on 26 April 2013, it
passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for 2012 to pay dividend to shareholders at Baht 0.18 per share,
totaling in amount of Baht 148.50 million which the Company had already paid the interim dividend payment at Baht 0.06
per share, totaling in amount of Baht 49.50 million on 7 September 2012, and will pay the final payment at Baht 0.12 per
share, totaling in amount of Baht 99.00 million, the list of shareholders’ names for the right to receive the dividend shall be
determined on 9 May 2013 and the dividend will be paid on 17 May 2013.

In accordance with the unanimous of the Board of Directors Meeting held on 13 August 2013, it was resolved to
pay a dividend of Baht 0.12 per share from the Company’s performance in before half year (on 1 January 2013 to 30 June
2013) totaling Baht 99.00 million to be paid within on 13 September 2013.

For the years ended 31 December 2012

In accordance with the Minutes of the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting for the year 2012, held on 25 April
2012, it passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for 2011 to pay dividend from the performance in second
half year (1 July 2011 to 31 December 2011) to shareholders at Baht 0.01 per share, the dividend will be paid within 18
May 2012.

In accordance with the unanimous of the Board of Directors Meeting held on 10 August 2012, it was resolved to
pay a dividend of Baht 0.06 per share from the Company’s performance in before half year (on 1 January 2012 to 30 June
2012) totaling 824.35 million shares and totaling Baht 49.46 million to be paid within on 7 September 2012.

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management are to maintain their abilities to continue as a going

concern and to maintain an appropriate capital structure.

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, debt to equity ratio in the consolidate financial statements is 0.61:1 and 0.44:1,
respectively.
Income Tax Expense (Revenue)

Income tax which is recognized in the profit for the period, consist of:

For the years For the years

31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Income Tax Baht Baht
Current Income Tax Expense (Revenue) 109,958,114.12 84,711,564.71
Deferred Income Tax
Deferred Tax Expense (Revenue) (4,073,182.06) (2,743,939.84)
Impact of Change in Tax Rate 1,301,371.80 2,201,422.06
Income Tax is Expense (Revenue) which Recognized in  the Profit for the Period 107,186,303.86 84,169,046.93

The difference between income tax expense (revenue) calculated from accounting profit at the tax rate for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 rate of 20% (2012 : 23%) are presented as follows :

For the years For the years

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Baht Baht
Profit Before Income Tax 525,493,453.17 353,858,995.46
Income Tax Expense (Revenue) calculated at the Tax Rate of 20% (2012 : 23%) 105,098,690.63 81,387,568.96
Expenses not Deductible for Income Tax 925,298.95 772,746.09
Additional Deductible Expenses (139,057.52) (192,690.18)
Impact of Change in Tax Rate 1,301,371.80 2,201,422.06
Income Tax Expense (Revenue) which Recognized in the Profit for the year 107,186,303.86 84,169,046.93
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Notes To Financial Statements

24.

Income tax which is recognized in the other comprehensive income, consist of:

Amount Before Revenue (Expense)

Taxes Income Taxes

For the year ended 31 December 2013
Gain on Remeasuring of Available-for-Sale Investments 1,276,086.93 (254,429.10)
For the year ended 31 December 2012
Gain on Remeasuring of Available-for-Sale Investments 20,482.16 (4,305.32)

Net of Taxes

1,021,657.83

16,176.84

Baht Baht

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Change in Fair Value of Available-for-Sale Investments
Gain during the year 4,555,785.59
Less Reclassification of (Gain) Loss which is Recognized in the Profit

of the Period (3,279,698.66)

Income Tax related to the Component of Other Comprehensive Income

(Expenses)

Other Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the period — Net of Income Tax

Amount Before Revenue (Expense)

Taxes Income Taxes

For the year ended 31 December 2012
Change in Fair Value of Available-for-Sale Investments
Gain during the year 1,103,800.71

Less Reclassification of (Gain) Loss which is Recognized

in the Profit of the year (1,083,318.55)

1,276,086.93

(254,429.10)

1,021,657.83

Income Tax related to the Component of Other Comprehensive Income

(Expenses)
Other Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the year — Net of Income Tax

Expenses by Nature

Consist of:

For the years

31 December 2013

Net of Taxes

20,482.16

(4,305.32)

16,176.84

For the years

31 December 2012

(333,515,646.59)
1,338,546,594.84
119,063,849.07
22,533,365.00
14,414,263.18
180,960,682.02

Change in Finished Goods and Work in Development (1,043,514,429.83)
Construction Materials Used and Construction Other Expenses 2,439,454,376.83
Employees Expense 118,464,687.06
Management Benefit Expenses 24,863,116.00
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 16,006,658.33
Other Expense 244,504,279.89

Total 1,769,913,081.71

1,342,003,107.52
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Notes To Financial Statements

25. Segment Information

The company operates in only one main sector, namely business of property development for sales and in one geo-
graphical area which is Thailand. Thus all incomes, profit and assets as shown on the financial statements were related to

the business sector and geographical area as already said.

26. Financial Instruments
26.1 Policies of Financial Risk Management
The Company is not hold or issue derivative instruments for speculative or trading purposes.
26.2 Risks on Interest Rates

Risk on interest rates is derived from fluctuation of interest rate in the future which affect upon operating result

and cash flow. The Company had assets and liabilities which it may have risk on interest rate as follows:

Annual ntres Rato

As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December | 31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

2013 2012
Saving Deposit Account 6.20 0.14 0.50 - 0.625 0.75
Bank Overdraft 9.20 17.27 MOR MOR
Long-term Borrowings 500.00 500.61 MLR a1 (1.00 — 1.25) MLR a1 (1.00 —1.25)

WAL 5.60 LAz 5.60

Debenture 800.00 800.00 5.25-5.30 5.25-5.30

26.3 Risk on Exchange Rate

The Company is not exposed to any risk from foreign exchange rate fluctuations because its main enterprise

in conducted locally.
26.4 Risk on Credit Provision

The Company faces risk from extending credit to customers who default on payment however the Company
evaluate each client’s ability to pay before giving credit and make a sufficient provision for doubtful debts in accor-

dance with accounting policy and the Company’s management believe that adequate.
26.5 Fair Value
Owing to mainly financial assets and financial liabilities were classified under short-term type and loans have
an interest rate nearby the rate in the market rate, the management of the company believe that the book values of
such financial assets and liabilities do not materially differ from fair value.
27. Transactions with Related Person

Consist of:

For the years For the years

31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Management Benefit Expenses

Short-term Employee Benefits 23,976,102.80 22,995,593.90
Post-Employment Benefits 887,013.20 (462,228.90)
Total 24,863,116.00 22,533,365.00
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Notes To Financial Statements

28.

29.

30.

31.

These management remuneration represent the benefits paid to the Company’s management and directors consist
of monetary remuneration such as salaries, related benefits and directors’ remuneration, including the benefits paid by

other means. The Company’s management is the persons who are defined under the low of Securities and Exchange.

Non-Cash Flows ltems

Consist of:

For the years For the years

31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Transfer Land Held to Development to Inventories 703,738,233.00 354,720,986.00
Amortized Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses to Inventories 1,197,656.93 320,530.39
Transfer Deposit to Land Held to Development - 16,321,100.00
Transfer Other Asset to Development to Inventories 10,909,303.73 -
Transfer Disposit to Development to Inventories 69,502,011.50 -
Purchase of Fixed Assets with credit 1,300,000.00 179,118.00
Gain on Remeasuring of Available-for-Sale Investments (1,276,086.93) (20,482.16)
Increase (Decrease) in Provision of Liablilities 130,509,705.17 16,325,545.88

Obligations from Project Development on Hand

As at As at

31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Number of Projects on Hand at Beginning of year 35 32
Number of Closed Projects (1) -
Number of New Projects 7 3
Number of Projects on Hand at End of year 41 35

The Company is has commitment to construct in accordance with several contract of project construction as follows:

As at As at
31 December 2013 | 31 December

Million Baht Million Baht

Remaining Amount of Contracted Construction 313.22 176.72

Obligations
30.1 Obligations with the financial institutions

Consist of:

As at As at
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

Million Baht Million Baht

Letter of Guarantee 356.95 257.96

Approval of the Financial Information

The financial information have been approved to issue by authorized directors of the Company on 19 February 2014.

Annual Report 2013
Lalin Property Public Company Limited

151



URAASBIA

WaauUryBdnSuseulnydl 2556
UWANIAUNTT TRIATRANNS
wanziieudaeuriydiueynyin 4996
151 104.1A. WaAANELALY wafiaad /i
128/151 aransweynlnmandn 41 14
AUy N 1WASTWA NFUNNY 10400
n9AWI : (02) 216 — 5595 - 7
M3419 : (02) 216 — 5596 - 7

AUSnuINgHLY
U3H0 AT Laus WIsTiuasd Aunafiudulus ARUTALAUYT S1in
$14 12 1A TINEIEA MaLes 2/4
auLANE qUAT Unudu ngamny 10330
n3An : (02) 267 - 8931
9417 : (02) 267 - 8942

WAMannswe
USENUATNSNE 1aLde WAR aNNA (NWT)
175 41 11 enAnsanssEAnIaes nuuamsld
WUNYNNULNR LIRAINT NTINNY 10120
3. (02) 680 - 1111
n9413. (02) 285 — 1901

SUIANTNINATRESET ANA (NUTU)
1222 DUUNTZINN 3 LBLNTWENNg
IAENWWINT NN 10120

3. (02) 296 - 2000

Inga19. (02) 683 — 1000

surAstlaandlng $17m (uunu)
44 DUUVASAU  WINQNAT lmLlyadu
N3N 10330

3. (02) 626 - 7329

n9a19. (02) 657 — 3333

s1Uls:9T 2556
152  USGN AAa wSewiwesa $1Ma (UKIYU)



Other References

Company’s Auditor
Ms.Chantra Wongsri-Udomporn
C.P.A. (Thailand) Registration N0.4996
S.K. Accountant Services Company Limited
128/151 Phayatai Plaza Building, 14th Floor,
Phayatai Road,
Ratchatavee, Bangkok 10400, Thailand
Tel : (66 2) 216 —5595 -7 Fax: (66 2) 216 —5596 - 7

The Legal Counsel
Kanung & Partners International Consultancy Company Limited
12th Floor, Nai Lert Tower, 214 Wireless Road, Bangkok 10330 Thailand
Tel : (66 2) 267 - 8931 Fax : (66 2) 267 - 8942

Dealer
Asia Plus Securities Public Company Limited
175, 11th Floor, Sathorn City Tower
South Sathorn Roadd Thung Maha Mek, Sathorn, Bangkok 10120
Tel : (66 2) 680 - 1111
Fax : (66 2) 285 - 1901

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

1222 Rama Il Road, Bang Phongphang, Yan Nawa
Bangkok 10120

Tel : (66 2) 296 - 2000

Fax : (66 2) 683 — 1000

CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
44 |.ang Suan Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan
Bangkok 10330

Tel : (66 2) 626 - 7329

Fax: (66 2) 657 — 3333

Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limted
9 Ratchadapisek Road, Jatujak, Jatujak
Bangkok 10900

Tel: (66 2) 544 - 1111

Fax: (66 2) 937 — 7931
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Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
1101 New Petchburi Road

Makkasan, Rajdhevi, Bangkok 10400

Tel : (66 2) 208 — 5000

Fax : (66 2) 253 — 6332

United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company
191 South Sathorn Road

Thung Maha Mek, Sathorn, Bangkok 10120
Tel : (66 2) 343 - 4996 - 8

Fax : (66 2) 343 — 4993

Securities Registrar
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
333 Silom Road, Silom, Bangrak
Bangkok 10500
Tel : (66 2) 231 — 4333
Fax : (66 2) 231 - 4890

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building,
Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (66 2) 229 — 2800

Fax: (66 2) 359 — 1259

TSD Call center: (66 2) 229 — 2888
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